IMPACTS OF SELECTED FEDERAL POLICIES ON GROWTH AND SURVIVABILITY OF TYPICAL FAMILY FARMS IN A STOCHASTIC ENVIRONMENT

Ву

STANLEY RAY RALSTIN

Bachelor of Science in Agriculture

Oklahoma State University

Stillwater, Oklahoma

1981

Submitted to the Faculty of the Graduate College
of the Oklahoma State University
in partial fulfillment of the requirements
for the Degree of
MASTER OF SCIENCE
May, 1983



AND SURVIVABILITY OF TYPICAL FAMILY FARMS

IN A STOCHASTIC ENVIRONMENT

Thesis Approved:

ii

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The farm economy is a unique system all its own, so it has unique problems associated with it. Whether people like it or not the government will always be involved in agriculture and as long as there are problems there will be policies attempting to correct them. That seems to be a problem in itself. Too many times policies are enacted to alleviate particular problems that arise. Some direction needs to be developed and policies set forth to meet the goals and objectives of the ones directly affected. I hope my research is a stepping stone in the right direction.

First and foremost I wish to express my thanks to Dr. Luther Tweeten, my major adviser. He showed great patience and fortitude during the course of my master's program, especially when my occasional bouts of dilatory behavior reached epidemic proportions. Appreciation is also expressed to Dr. Dr. Darrel Kletke and Dr. Daryll Ray for their constructive thoughts and comments.

Special thanks also go to the Agricultural Economics Department for their work both academically and financially in helping me obtain my goal. Many thanks to the computer whiz David Pyles is also in order.

My gratitude is also fully expressed to all of my graduate comrades. Life was so much easier to bear with the hunting and fishing trips, card games, parties, and general shooting of the bull. Hunting and fishing excursions just would not have been the same without people like Kevin Jeter, Tim Cross, and Jeff Marshall. And the days at the office would have been quite dull without the antics of Mark, Claudia, J.C., Ruth, and Beth. A very special thanks goes out to Minnie Tom Hamilton. Thanks Bob, you are a true friend.

Of course, all of the previously mentioned expressions of appreciation could not have been possible without the support, encouragement and loving kindness of my parents, Ray and Yvonne Ralstin. They deserve a degree also. I also wish to thank my brother and sisters for their support. I owe it all to God and my family for helping me through.

Last of all, "thank you, Denise" for the typing and work you put in on my thesis. I could not have done it without you.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapte	r	Page
I.	INTRODUCTION	1
	Inflation Problems	2
	Taxation Problems	3
	Objectives	5
	Hypothesis	6
		6
	Literature Review	9
	Models	-
	Organization of the Remaining Chapters	10
II.	A DESCRIPTIVE ANALYSIS OF THE DATA, THE TYPICAL FARM, AND PROGRAMMING CHANGES IN THE SIMULATION MODEL	11
	Farm Series and the Typical Farm	11
	Model Changes	14
	Coefficient of Variation	14
	Equity/Asset Ratio	15
		16
	Income Averaging	18
	Iterations	10
111.	THE MODEL FOR EVALUATING FEDERAL POLICIES AFFECTING FARM GROWTH IN A STOCHASTIC ENVIRONMENT	19
	A second by a second	22
	Assumptions	23
	Initial Farm Parameters	
	Exogenous Economic Parameters	25
	Income Tax Indexing	27
	Family Living Expenses	27
	Other Calculations of Accounting Year	28
IV.	RESULTS AND INTERPRETATIONS OF THE SIMULATION MODEL	29
	Basic Comparison	31
	Constant Dollar Values	31
	Initial Tenure Experiment	31
	Alternative Consumption Experiment	33
		34
	Income Averaging for Tax Liabilities	35
	Alternative Tax Policy Experiment	
	Net Worth Analysis	35
	Effects of Coefficient of Variation	38
	Interaction of Coefficient of Variation and	
	Inflation	38
	Type of Ownership Acquired	41

Chapter		Page
	Interaction of Coefficient of Variation and Tax Experiments	42 44 46 50
V. SUMM	ARY AND CONCLUSIONS	53
	Limitations and Areas for Future Research Conclusions	55 57
REFERENCES		59
APPENDIX .		62

LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
1.	The Actual Range, Average, Standard Deviation and Coefficient of Variation for the Individual Farms, 1972-1981	65
2.	Rate of Taxation on Personal Income and Net Worth in Percentage Terms	66
3.	Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	67
4.	Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	70
5.	Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	73
6.	Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	76
7.	Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	79
8.	Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	80
9.	Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	81
10.	Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	84

Table		Page
11.	Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	87
12.	Results of Simulation Runs as 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	90
13.	Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	93
14.	Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	94
15.	Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	95
16.	Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	98
17.	Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	101
18.	Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	104
19.	Results of Full Owner Simulation at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	107
20.	Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	108
21.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	109
22.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	110
23.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	111

Table		Page
24.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	112
25.	Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	113
26.	Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	114
27.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	115
28.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	116
29.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	117
30.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	118
31.	Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	119
32.	Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	120
33.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	121
34.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0	122
35.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20	123
36.	Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset	124

Table		Page
37.	Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	125
38.	Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40	126

CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

Along with other significant changes in the farm economy of the United States during the last 40 years, the number of individuals in the farming sector has declined. Since 1940 the number of farms has been reduced by over half, average farm size has more than doubled, and control of agriculture's production resources has become concentrated into fewer hands. Agriculture's marketing system has become increasingly geared to large-scale producers, as have the businesses that sell fertilizers, seeds, and other production inputs to farm operators. Rising prices of inputs including land together with increasing real asset requirements to form an economic farming unit have increased barriers for entry into farming.

These developments have been part of an agricultural revolution that has boosted productivity dramatically. Technology adopted by agricultural producers not only has resulted in fewer farmers, but also has allowed agricultural output to increase at the rate of about 2 percent annually since 1950 with only modest overall increases in conventional production inputs. Production rising faster than demand for food in recent decades further complicates the situation because the inelastic output demand means that the drop in price more than offsets increased consumption — hence farm receipts fall when supply outruns demand. The benefits of low real farm commodity prices

to the national economy and to consumers have been enormous. But the cost has also been high for many rural areas in terms of migration to cities, declining populations, and failing small-town businesses. The problems arising from narrow farm profit margins have been aggravated by price and production instability, the increasing assets required for an economic unit, and the necessity for greater debt financing. Increasing leverage ratios of debt to equity especially among newly established farm operators raises chances for illiquidity. Some of the problem may trace to federal fiscal, monetary, and taxation policies as noted by former Secretary of Agriculture Bob Bergland in the forward of Structure Issues of American Agriculture (USDA, 1979):

We have few programs today that deal specifically with farm structure and no comprehensive policy on the subject at all. The rate of agricultural change was so rapid that for 30 years Federal policy could do little more than react. It responded to immediate crises and tried to provide a measure of stability, but in doing so had results that were neither planned nor expected.

Most of the income benefits from traditional commodity programs, for example, go to the largest producers. Our tax laws have favored larger operations and encouraged outside investment in agriculture. And our credit system may well have fostered a kind of economic cannibalism within agriculture by giving aggressive operators the means to buy out their neighbors (Foreward).

The impact of federal tax, spending and inflation policies on farm firms and the farming sector is not well understood.

Inflation Problems

Inflation impacts unevenly on family farmers over the life cycle of the family farm. Beginning farmers often rely on debt financing to gain a foothold in the industry. Increasing real requirements for an

economic unit are compounded by inflation. Inflation raises costs (mortgage interest rates quickly respond to expectations of inflation) while it deters returns. That is, the "returns" from inflation come as capital gains rather than as higher current rates of return (Tweeten). Capital gains are realized only if the land is sold; meanwhile current or immediate costs continue to rise. Thus inflation increases cash outflow at a faster rate than the cash inflow, leaving less income for family living expenses and for servicing debts. As a result, beginning operators in recent years have needed increasingly higher initial equity ratios, off-farm income or leasing arrangements to survive the cash flow deficits in early years. The cash-flow squeeze associated with farmland indebtedness coupled with the high inflation places hardships on all sectors of the economy but places unique pressures on the agricultural sector because of high capital requirements and the special role of land assets. The causes and effects of existing and continuing cash-flow problems need to be determined for the family farm sector.

Taxation Problems

Federal tax policies influence the ability of farm firms to survive and grow. Some contend that interest payment deductions, depreciation allowances and investment tax credits have encouraged established farmers to grow beyond the family economic unit size, thereby accelerating the trend toward larger and fewer farms. Others contend that these tax provisions are essential for family farmers to get a foothold in farming. Because in theory a case can be made in

support of either contention, resolution of the conflicting claims requires empirical analysis.

Since incomes have been taxed in the United States, farmers have been given some favorable options and advantages. For instance, farmers have been entitled to report farm income under cash accounting rules that allow some freedom in choosing the time for realizing income, incurring expenses, and taking tax deductions. Preferential treatment of taxes may have led to some unforeseen and unfavorable results for individuals in the farming industry, especially beginning and low-equity farmers. This preferential treatment has led to assertions that income tax laws impact adversely on the structure of agriculture, abetting the trend toward larger and fewer farms.

Tax laws favor certain kinds of farm asset investments such as farmland, certain improvements to farmland, and even certain animals. The tax laws give incentives for capital investment and place tax burdens on labor in such forms as Social Security, Unemployment Compensation, and Workman's Compensation and may affect the mix of capital and labor in agriculture. Tax provisions may have attracted nonfarm capital into the farm sector, thereby increasing farm output and causing lower prices. Another assertion is that because high-income taxpayers tend to benefit relatively more from most tax exemptions than low-income taxpayers, increasing quantities of farm assets are being controlled by a decreasing number of high-income owners. And since some tax benefits apply only to farm owners and not just farm operators, the tax laws encourage legal arrangements for ownership and operation in ways that may not be consistent with the

family farm ideal. For example, syndicates, corporations, and large commercial farms are said to be encouraged (USDA, 1979).

Objectives

The primary objective of this study is to determine the effect of federal taxation and fiscal-monetary policies on the opportunity for growth and survivability of typical commercial farms. This research evaluates the ability of a family farm to grow and survive under various assumed scenarios of inflation, initial ownership, yearly income variation, and tax policies. The study examines changes in farm income and balance sheet accounts under alternative assumptions regarding annual variability as measured by coefficient of variation of net farm income. The simulation model adapted from Eginton (1982) determines the 30-year growth pattern of a typical family farm under various economic environments resulting from federal fiscal and monetary policies and how these policies influence the structure of the agricultural sector. Data from the Federal Enterprise Data System typical farm series provide the foundation to simulate the impact of selected federal fiscal and monetary policies on farm survivability and growth. The federal policies evaluated in the study are:

- 1. Interest payment deductions against taxable income.
- 2. Depreciation allowances on farm machinery as a deduction against taxable income.
 - 3. Investment tax credits on business equipment and facilities.
 - 4. Inflation rates of 6 and 12 percent.
 - 5. Indexed tax rate schedules for inflation.

Firm growth and survivability using the above policies are estimated from the initial starting positions of:

- Full ownership of land and machinery.
- 2. Part ownership with minimum equity in land and 30 percent equity in machinery.
- 3. All land rented with 30 percent equity in machinery.

Hypothesis

Considering the above objective, of interest is the relationship between firm growth and survivorship on one hand and characteristics of the three types of farming situations (full owner, part owner, full renter) and initial equity on the other hand. It is hypothesized that federal policies generate greatest net worth for established farmers — those who met the demands of the early cash-deficit years and survived to the cash surplus years. That is, established farmers are helped more by tax and inflation policies than beginning or low-equity farmers and hence are able to reduce the cost of debt financing for land purchases. If this hypothesis is supported, the implication is that public policy might be reexamined for changes consistent with encouraging growth up to family size farms and discouraging growth of very large farms.

Literature Review

The concept "farm structure" refers to how the farm sector is organized as measured by farm size, farm numbers, tenure patterns, legal organization, input and output markets, and characteristics of agencies and institutions that interact with farmers.

Technology, inflation, and trends in the demand for farm products were blamed for the emergence of chronic excess capacity in agriculture in earlier decades, but Tweeten (1979) singled out redundant farm labor to explain the continuance of low income and rates of return to resources through the 1960s. The farm population accounted for one-third of the national population in 1910, but today accounts for 3 percent. Excess labor is no longer considered an economic problem to the agricultural sector; however, inflation and productivity continue to play an important role in the farm problem.

Farmers are price-takers and have no immediate means to pass on higher input prices. In a study by Tweeten and Griffin (1976) prices paid by farmers and prices received by farmers were separately regressed on the implicit price deflator of the GNP to measure the impact of national inflation on farm prices. The results show that each 1 percent increase in general inflation raised the index of prices paid by farmers 1 percent and raised prices received by farmers by an insignificant amount in the short run. A later study by Tweeten (1980) using a different methodology also concluded that prices received by farmers increased less than prices paid by farmers in the short run with an increase in the general price level.

Given time, the ratio of prices paid to prices received by farmers does not seem to be much influenced by inflation. Potentially more onerous structural implications emerge from the cash-flow impacts of inflation. Many farmers have benefited from inflation by appreciating land values. Research by Tweeten (1980) and Melichar show that as long as significant inflation is expected in land values, returns to ownership of farmland will be split between current net

returns to land and capital gains. During the 1970s capital appreciation in land values constituted the greatest portion of total returns to land. Although some of this appreciation was due to real increases in land value tied to increasing real land earnings, either real or nominal increases in land values cause cash flow problems for new or expanding farmers. Inflation adds a premium to debt-financed farmland ownership costs and returns. But the premium on cost is recognized immediately with higher mortgage interest rates and the returns premium, i.e. capital gain, is not realized until the land is The competitive edge lies with the full owner-operator compared to the low-equity beginning operator for land purchasing. Given similar gross returns, low equity farmers find it difficult to meet the negative cash flows that result from high levels of debt financing relative to current returns; whereas the established owner-operators can in effect obtain a tax exempt status by deferring taxes on current income with continual growth and expansion of the farm.

Depreciation allowances, investment tax credits, and interest payment write-offs create incentives for growth and expansion (Eginton, 1980). In general terms these write-offs in the presence of high inflation and tax bracket creep have reduced the cost of capital investment. Tax benefits tend to be proportional to the relative tax rate on the income sheltered through these rules, so the greatest investment inducement is offered to the wealthiest and highest income taxpayers. Such situations shift the comparative advantage in farming investment away from entry-level or expanding full-time farmers who rely on the farm for income and may hasten the arrival of a future farming structure heavily sided toward (1) absentee landlords, (2) a

few large diversified corporations producing most of the farm output, and (3) a large number of small, part-time farms accounting for most farms in number (Tweeten, 1981a).

Models

Several types of models have been used to process farm firm data for policy and management analysis. For purposes of this study the flexibility and complexity allowed by dynamic simulation is critical. Simulation is limited in depth of analysis only by one's knowledge and capacity to handle data problems that arise when attempting greater realism through detail in simulation. Simulation permits probability events, deals with sequential time, and allows interaction with capital and operating problems of the farm business (Hutton).

One such model with policy evaluation and analysis was developed by Hardin and later modified by Dean. Dean used a whole-farm scenario for a typical farm in southwest Oklahoma to analyze various commodity programs. His model featuring a ten-year planning period analyzed each commodity program and combinations thereof to see if commodity and all-risk insurance programs restricted or enhanced farm growth and chances of firm survival (Dean).

A deterministic simulation model developed by Eginton (1982) used the USDA's Typical Farm Data Series to identify and depict firm growth under various whole-farm scenarios. Growth in income and net worth of these farms was simulated over a 30-years planning horizon to analyze the affects of different inflation rates and tax policies including interest payment write-offs, depreciation allowances, and investment

tax credits. Eginton found that higher inflation rates had a greater impact on structure of farming by restricting entry of potential owner-operators than by restricting the rate of growth in net worth of persons who were able to enter farming operations. Eginton found that tax provisions had a major impact on growth and explored various options to encourage firm growth to the size of an economic unit and then discourage additional growth. Eginton's deterministic model was not designed to identify the interactions between instability in farming and government programs. An inflationary environment may cause greater structural changes in a stochastic environment because a given equity may be subject to greater chances of being wiped out by random events under the cash flow constraints associated with high inflation rates — an issue examined in this study.

Organization of the Remaining Chapters

Chapter II describes the data used in the analysis including the typical farm. This chapter also reviews key elements in the model such as the coefficient of variation, equity/asset ratio, income averaging and iteration procedures. Chapter III contains the description of the model including the assumptions, parameters and equations associated with the model calculations. Chapter IV examines the results of the simulations, including the effects on farmers of taxes, inflation, and changes in consumption patterns, at various levels of instability and borrowing capacity. Chapter V summarizes the study and concludes with limitations of the analysis and implications for future research.

CHAPTER II

A DESCRIPTIVE ANALYSIS OF THE DATA, THE TYPICAL FARM, AND PROGRAMMING CHANGES IN THE SIMULATION MODEL

Farm Series and the Typical Farm

The agricultural sector of the United States grows a wide variety of commodities. Each commodity and the region in which it is produced has unique problems and needs. To provide information about American farms, the U.S.D.A. published a cost and returns series for average type-of-production farms by region. As agriculture evolved, these publications of farm incomes and costs for crop, livestock, and other crop production situations were discontinued and replaced by a new, more flexible series.

The new data series provides up-to-date summary information describing the resource base, production levels, and operating budgets on a comparable basis for typical commercial farming operations in the U.S. The data, encompassing most of the major commodities produced throughout the nation, provide useful information on farm receipts, expenses, and balance sheets. The new Firm Enterprise Data System typical farm series provides the basic firm data for the initial operating year of the farms used in this research.

The typical farms are developed from data and information based on the Census of Agriculture, cost of production surveys, and ERS statistical data. A modal size of principal enterprise was selected and the remaining typical farm characteristics were derived from various data sources. A typical farm defined in this manner is not an average farm but is representative of a selected type of farm in a specified area. The key variables for delineating the typical farms, which are designed to be realistic models of commercial farming units, are the size of farm, land and livestock values, total asset value and labor requirements. The typical farm for this study is located in southwest Oklahoma. Key variables for the typical farm associated with this research are: size, 960 acres; land value per acre, \$1,046; livestock value, \$12,905; total asset value, \$1,210,060; and labor required, 2,516 hours.

The Census data used to determine the modal size of the principal enterprises for the typical farm in southwest Oklahoma come from the counties of Cotton, Jackson, and Tillman. Cost of production data and price and yield information are obtained from enterprise budgets developed and maintained by the Federal Enterprise Data System.

The principal enterprises for the typical Oklahoma farm are cotton, wheat, and beef cows. The sizes of the enterprises of the typical farm are: cotton production, 140 acres; wheat production, 420 acres; hay production, 50 acres; pasture land, 320 acres; and 30 beef cows.

A cash flow equation was used to calculate the initial starting positions for the zero cash flow (part-owner) tenure arrangements in the simulation model. The equation was modified to allow a solution

which trades off income against mortgage expense by varying the number of acres under ownership control for a given typical size farm. The initial values for the southwest Oklahoma farm shows a machinery value of \$154,875 and receipts of \$107,166.

The zero cash flow equation has variable income and expense streams that are calculated as follows:

Income from one acre of land X (number acres owned)

- + Family labor earnings
- + Operator management return
- + Machinery equity return

=

Family living expense

- + Mortgage payment/acre
- X (1 Equity requirement)(Number acres owned)

In the first year of the simulation, the rate of inflation affects the expense stream but not the income stream. Differences in inflation rates cause differences in mortgage expenses and in initial tenure positions consistent with having a zero cash flow first year balance sheet. For example, a change in the inflation rate from 6 to 12 percent increases the debt service on an acre of land for the typical southwest Oklahoma farm from \$101 to \$159. More equity or other farm earning would be required to offset this \$58 additional per acre expense. Inflation rates and interest rates are assumed to be constant throughout the 30-year assumed life cycle of the farm enterprise.

Model Changes

The model used by Eginton was the basis for the research, however changes were made to make the model stochastic and to observe the impact of risk. The main changes programmed into the model include ability to specify a coefficient of variation on net farm income, an equity-asset ratio to limit borrowing on equity, income tax averaging, and making the model iterative to get statistically sound results on the key variables.

Coefficient of Variation

The coefficient of variation of income plays a key role in this research. Alternative coefficient values are used in the model to measure the impact on economic outcomes of various degrees of instability.

The coefficient of variation is applied directly to farm income, which is income from farm sources only and not from off-farm sources. A random number generator is used in the model with the numbers picked being limited from -1.96 to 1.96 from a mean of zero. This allows for 95 percent of all observations to be available for computations. These numbers are assumed to be from a normal distribution, however other distributions might give better results for this evaluation. This is an area for future research affecting farm incomes.

The random number that is generated is then multiplied by the coefficient of variation. The calculations then affect farm income in the following manner, where FINC is the year-end calculation for net farm income and FINC' is the net farm income with the instability

factor applied to it. This FINC' value is then used as the starting dollar value of farm income in the next year's beginning balance sheet.

FINC' = FINC + (COEF * RANDOM * FINC)

FINC = Farm Income

where

COEF = Coefficient of Variation

RANDOM = Random number generator value.

An an example of the above equation, suppose the year-end calculation for farm income is \$48,000, the random number generated is -1.2, and the coefficient of variation is .25. The resulting farm income based on the coefficient of variation is \$33,600. This farm income value is then added to the off-farm income to get total farm income for the year. This \$33,600 value plus off-farm income is used as the income basis for beginning the next year's simulation instead of the sum of \$48,000 and off-farm income. The calculations continue in this manner every year for the 30-year period in the model to represent the typical growth-oriented family farm owner-operator.

Equity/Asset Ratio

Another major change introduced into Eginton's model was provision for the farmer to "mine" his equity. The original model always had a positive cash flow at year end. With random income, cash flow is sometimes negative but can be handled by borrowing. In negative cash flow years, the farmer will borrow from his equity to raise net cash flow to zero. The farmer is liquidating his assets to pay for his cash flow shortfall. The minimum equity/asset ratio sets

the upper limit the farmer can borrow. When the farmer reaches his borrowing capacity, he is then declared bankrupt and his farming operation is terminated.

Income Averaging

With the stochastic model, the farm may have positive or negative incomes depending on the selection of the random number. Yearly fluctuations in actual farm incomes are simulated. All the tax policies in the basic model remain intact for analysis, but the calculated changes involved income averaging for tax liabilities.

According to the U.S. Master Tax Guide (1982), a taxpayer having unusual fluctuations in income can use an averaging device to ease the tax bite in peak income years. Rules of income averaging apply to almost all types of income including salaries, commissions, bonuses, interest, dividends, professional fees, ordinary income from role proprietorships or partnerships, capital gains, wagering income, and income from gifts or inheritances.

To calculate tax liabilities with income averaging one must first calculate the "averagable income." This is the excess of the current year's taxable income over 120% of the average taxable income for the four years preceding the current year, which is called the "average base period income." The averagable income is the amount subject to averaging, as long as it exceeds \$3,000.

The next step involves computing a tax on 1/5 of the averagable income. This is equal to the difference between (1) a tax computed on the sum of 120% of the average base period income and 1/5 of the

averagable income, and (2) a tax figured on just the 120% of the average base period income.

The total tax liability under income averaging is the sum of the tax on 120% of the average base period income and five times the tax on 1/5 of the averagable income as calculated above.

Example: A married couple filing joint returns average annual taxable income during 1978-1981 was \$19,700. Their income consisted solely of salary in those years. As a result of winning a state lottery their taxable income for 1982 was \$57,500. Their averagable income is \$33,860:

Taxable income for 1982	\$57,500
120% of \$19,700 average base period income	23,640
Averagable income	\$33,860

The tax on 1/5 of the averagable income (\$6,772) is \$1,946:

Tax on \$30,412 (120% of \$19,700 plus	\$5,743
1/5 of \$33,860) Less tax on \$23,640 (120% of \$19,700)	3,797
Tax on 1/5 of averagable	\$1,946

The tax under the averaging rules is \$13,527:

Tax	on \$23,640 (120% of \$19,700)	\$ 3,797
Tax	on averagable income (5 X \$1,946)	9,730
Tax	liability	\$13,527

Note: Taxes calculated from 1982 schedule (U.S. Master Tax Guide).

The tax saved by averaging is \$3,078, the difference between the \$16,605 tax on \$57,500 without averaging and the \$13,527 tax with averaging.

The income tax averaging law allows the farmer to soften the tax burden associated with a year of unusually high income whether from good management or luck.

Iterations

To deterime the mean and variance of outcomes for different coefficients of variations on farm income and borrowing limits based on differing equity/asset ratios, the model had to be iterative. On each run with the given parameter values assigned, the model runs through the 30 year planning horizon 100 times. This appeared to be sufficient iterations to allow reasonably reliable statistical measures of outcomes for the variables to be analyzed in the study.

CHAPTER III

THE MODEL FOR EVALUATING FEDERAL POLICIES AFFECTING FARM GROWTH IN A STOCHASTIC ENVIRONMENT

The deterministic computer simulation model used by Eginton calculates annual income and expense streams and a yearly financial balance sheet for each of the 30 years in the planning horizon. The balance sheet contains information on cash flow, tax payments, family consumption and savings, and measures of firm size and rates of growth.

The model results provide a basis for estimating the impacts of selected federal policies. Impacts can be judged by comparing runs with and without a specific tax provision, different coefficients of variation, different borrowing level constraints, and various assumed inflation levels.

With the exception of the major changes mentioned in the previous chapter, the basic workings and computations of the model are the same as those used by Eginton. The results of the expanded model allow for a more vigorous and intensive analysis of the effects of federal policies on farm income, growth, and survivability. It allows analysis of results generated in a stochastic environment.

The farm firms are allowed to expand only in years when they generate greater income than expenses. Once the decision is made directing profits to either consumption or savings and investment, the

feasibility of expansion can be analyzed. Cash flow analysis provides the information needed to determine the feasibility of expansion by taking the operating income and expense streams and calculating the residual cash surplus or deficit. Farmers with positive cash flows are poised for growth, and farmers with cash deficits must mine their equity or liquidate their owned assets.

Income and expense streams of actual firms are subject to fluctuations caused by exogenous factors such as weather, domestic demand, and export demand. The coefficient of variation is used to simulate the fluctuations in income based on historical data. Simplifying assumptions project constant average rates of return from which costs can be deducted to determine net cash flow. This cash flow can be expected to increase or decrease in subsequent years, according to the variation in income and subject to imputed variation in mortgage and other costs over time. As such, this cash flow approximates the funds available to the firm for increasing consumption or savings — investment. It also gives the amount of money available each year from the existing operation to finance expansion. The use of cash flow to service new mortgages provides the basis for growth in owned acres.

The system of equations that form the basic model are as follows:

Total income = Net income from land ownership

- + Family labor earnings
- + Operator management return
- + Machinery equity return

Taxable Income Equation:

Total taxable income = Total income

- Personal exemptions
- Depreciation allowances
- Interest payment write-offs

Cash-Flow Equation:

Annual cash flow = Total income

- (Income tax Tax credits)
- Self-employment tax
- Current living expense
- Total mortgage payments

Net Worth Equation:

Net worth = Current value of land holding

- + Value of machinery complement
- + Cash savings
- Mortgages
- Machinery debt

Borrowing Equation:

Borrowing power = Cash-flow surplus
X Present value factor

Minimum Living Equation:

Minimum living expense = Urban median income
X Rural savings rate adjustment

The variable calculations are as follows:

Income from land equity = 4 percent of current value

Labor returns = On-farm labor at farm wage rate + Off-farm wages on surplus time

Operator management return = 7 percent of value added

Machinery return = Value of machinery equity
X Opportunity cost factor

Depreciation allowance = 6 percent of machinery value

Interest write-offs = Mortgages
 X Interest rate

Self-employment tax = Net farm income X Self-employment tax rates

Current living expense = \$12,600 X Inflation factor

Total mortgage payments = Total mortgages
X Present value factor

Hired labor expense = Hours used
X Farm wage rate

Assumptions

The research presumes that cash flow is a useful measure of a family farm firm's ability to survive and grow. Cash-flow criteria guide the decision-making process adopted by expansion-minded farmers. To allow for consistency and comparability of results among the different experiments, the model assumes farmers expand using financially leveraged purchases to maintain a near zero annual cash flow without refinancing.

In case of negative cash flow, the farm firm must "mine" its equity. This "mining" of equity is in effect a liquidation of owned assets. This amount of borrowing on equity is limited by the equity/asset ratio in the model. In the years that the farm firm has negative cash flows, the model will reduce the value of the fully owned equity of the farm to raise the cash flow value to zero. Cash flow surpluses provide for expansion of real estate. According to Barry, Hopkin, and Baker a typical lender rule of thumb for real estate requires a one-third equity in purchased land. This requirement implies a maximum debt-to-equity ratio of two and an equity-asset ratio of .33. For purposes of evaluating the borrowing limits in the model, the equity-asset ratio's used are: 0.00, 0.20, and 0.40.

A second set of assumptions deals with income and expense streams. Based on historical data and economic theory, the owner-operator is awarded a net expense (after production expense)

real net return of 4 percent on the current value of land. The labor-management income is calculated by adding labor return (farm wage rate times labor requirements) to management return (7 percent of net cash receipts). Net cash receipts are the value of all agricultural output less operating input costs. Debt financed machinery investments are assumed to break-even financially through output increases, labor savings, and timeliness benefits. Machinery equity, based on an opportunity return, contributes to the dollar value of income.

The 30-year planning horizon, as stated before, is assumed to be the typical term of active growth oriented ownership for the owner-operator of a typical family farm. The operator is assumed to begin full-time farming at 35 years of age. This age positions him with maturity, experience, and capital to operate an economic farming unit.

Initial Farm Parameters

The land value for the typical family farm was derived from the Firm Enterprise Data System. The value of land-based improvements such as fences, barns, terraces, and drainage are added to the unimproved land value to approximate the market price of an average acre of land.

The amount of owned, mortgaged, and rented acres was determined from the cash flows reported for the FEDs typical family farm. Based upon the various starting positions of full owner, zero cash flow part owner, and full renter, the ownership patterns of these economic size units are changed. The full owner starts with only fully owned acres, i.e., no mortgaged and no rented acres. The part owner and renter purchase currently rented acres (as cash flow allows) before purchasing land for expansion beyond the initial operation. After the entire economic size unit is under full ownership, growth beyond the typical size results form expansion purchases rather than renting.

The value of the machinery required by the beginning typical size family farm unit is taken directly from the FEDs machinery accounting data for the typical farm. The first year depreciation allowance is the same for each of the three tenure experiments. requirements are taken from the typical farm data and are entered into the model as hours of labor required per acre operated. The typical family farm has four members providing a maximum of 2,600 hours of labor annually. The model allows for farms with requirements of less than 2,600 hours to receive off-farm employment at an hourly wage rate of \$7.50. This allows for the full utilization of available family labor. On the other hand, when labor requirements surpass the available family hours of labor, additional labor is hired. After the twentieth year of the simulation, the family's annual labor resources decline to 2,000 hours, based on the assumption the two children are no longer available for farm labor. All farm labor is paid the farm labor wage rate reported by the USDA for the state in which the farm is located. The initial farm parameters in the model are as follows:

Land value
Number of acres operated
Number of acres owned with full equity
Number of acres owned with mortgages
Number of acres rented
Capital gain rate on land
Value of machinery required for units
Value of machinery owned
Valued of machinery under loan

Depreciation rate on machinery
Minimum size land tract for expansion.

Exogenous Economic Parameters

The exogenous parameters that affect the results of the model include:

General inflation
Coefficient of variation on farm income
Equity/asset ratio for borrowing limits
Machinery inflation
Interest on machinery loans
Interest on savings
Returns to equity
Returns to rental land by value of net receipts
Leverage rate for savings
Capital gains use rate
Mortgage rate for land.

Two interest rates of 6 and 12 percent are used to show the effects of continued high and intermediate rates of inflation on survivability and growth in size and net worth. This allows for the analysis of the impact of federal policies affecting the general price level on typical family farms. Interest charged on purchases and paid on savings are a real rate of 3 percent. The nominal rate is the inflation rate plus 3 percentage points.

The values of the coefficient of variation used in income in the simulations are .25, .50, and .75. These values and their appropriate calculations attempt to simulate variations in yearly farm income based on prices, yields, weather, supply and demand factors, etc. Based on results of 11 farms covering the years from 1972-1981 from OSU Farm Record System, the average coefficient of variation on net farm income in southwest Oklahoma is 94 percent. Data for individual farms are presented in Table 1 of the Appendix. (Note: all tables in

the study are located in the Appendix.) Regressing the coefficients of variation on the percentage of owned equity and inserting the equity value of 100 percent into the equation, a coefficient of variation of 38 percent is predicted for the full owner. Individual coefficients of variation in Table 1 of the Appendix may seem low compared to the values used in the model. However, the years from which the data are taken do not appear to be typical. During the years 1972-1981 the economy experienced unusual supply and demand shocks and higher than normal inflation trends. Farmers' incomes were greatly influenced by rising production input costs including land, machinery, equipment, fertilizer, and etc. In the first part of the series of years, the U.S. experienced huge exports and thus higher prices. During these years, farmers were also affected by such events as low farm stocks worldwide, a grain embargo, and cutbacks in oil and oil related products. In the later years of the period considered, inflation continued to increase, farm commodity stocks worldwide continued to mount with consecutive years of favorable weather, and another grain embargo was invoked. Although the individual farm records for Southwest Oklahoma do not go back before 1972, secondary data sources indicate considerably lower variation in incomes in the 1950s and 1960s -- in no small part because of government commodity programs to stabilize returns (Tweeten 1981b). Since the model is a simulation of future years which may behave more like the 1960s than the 1970s, the overall lower values of the coefficient of variation seem to be warranted. However, it is possible to "experiment" with higher coefficients if so desired.

The federal tax schedules used within the model to determine income tax liabilities are based on 1982 tax rates. The method for calculating taxable income change with the various tax experiments. Self-employment tax limits are indexed to general inflation rates and the tax liability is calculated using the current projections.

Income Tax Indexing

In the standard case with indexed income tax rates, the taxable income is deflated to constant dollar terms and the tax liability is determined from the tax rate tables. The tax is then inflated to current dollars for the year of the simulation. At this point, investment tax credits for the firm are calculated as 10 percent of the year's depreciation which on the average amounts to 6 percent of the current value of the machinery complement.

Family Living Expenses

The living expense for the farm family in the model was set based on the median family income of urban families in 1979 as shown by the minimum living equation previously mentioned. Farm families' savings rate are near 30 percent of their incomes compared to a 5 percent savings rate of urban families. This difference in consumption/savings patterns provides a basis for adjusting the minimum living standard to 70 percent of the median urban income. The farmer is assumed to invest the entire income differential in his farm. This amounts to farm family spending (consuming) \$12,600 per year when the income for a median urban family is \$19,000. The current living expense is then calculated by taking \$12,600 times an

inflation factor. This allows for constant real value of consumption each year. An alternative consumption function allowing living expenses to change with personal income was also part of the experiment.

Other Calculations of Accounting Year

At the beginning of the simulation, the model calculates the current values of the imputed variables and determine the income and expense streams for the accounting year to produce a financial balance sheet for the farm on January 1. The current land and machinery complement values are calculated by multiplying their original values by the inflation factor of 1 + inflation rate raised to the power, N-1, where N is the year of the simulation. The resulting data are used to determine the current values of the land equity and the farming unit as a whole.

The income streams are all calculated in current dollars. For tax computations the annual mortgage payments are split into principal and interest components. The current maximum taxable self-employed income is calculated by inflating the 1979 ceiling of 17,700 to current dollars. An indexed allowance for personal exemptions is deducted from taxable income. New accelerated depreciation schedules were not considered to simplify programming. From the results on the balance sheet, annual cash flow is calculated in the following manner: total income - total expenses - (federal income tax - investment tax credit). The cash flow value shows the ability of the farm firm to service additional mortgages, and as such is used as the basis for expansion in minimum size increments of 40 acres.

CHAPTER IV

RESULTS AND INTERPRETATIONS OF THE SIMULATION MODEL

This chapter reports the implications of the federal fiscal-monetary policies for a typical Oklahoma commercial family farm in a stochastic environment. Results are tabulated in the Appendix Tables 3 through 38. The data provide estimates of rates of growth in discounted net worth, numbers of surviving farm firms, and tax payment information under alternative ownership patterns, varying levels of uncertainty and borrowing limits, and various selected federal income tax features. This stochastic model also provides a basis for many fruitful areas of future research and analysis.

The data were used to analyze interactions among inflation, taxation policies and farm characteristics as well as to determine the separate effects of differing tax provisions and rates of inflation on growth and survivability of the farm. All of this is within the framework of differing levels of uncertainty directly affecting farm income and varying limits of borrowing on one's equity to meet obligations of negative cash flow years. The three general experiments or alternatives to the basic computation relate to (a) initial tenure, (b) family consumption level, and (c) tax policy. Each of these experiments was run with two rates of inflation, 6 and 12 percent. Each experiment was also run with three coefficients of variation, 0.25, 0.50, and 0.75, which directly affect farm income.

And finally each experiment was run with three equity/asset ratios, 0.0, 0.20, and 0.40, which limit the farm operator's "mining" of his equity to meet liabilities in deficit cash flow years' liabilities. A total of 486 30-year simulations were run with each of the runs consisting of 100 iterations. The results shown for each variable are averages of the 100 iterations, and all numbers are from normal distributions. It is important to note that the results of the runs are the average values of the iterations of firms that survived the 30 year period. For example, if 25 of the 100 iterations go bankrupt, then the results shown are only the averages of the 75 iterations that completed the 30-year simulation. This will tend to bias the results of the balance sheet variables presented in the tables. The larger the number of failures the more biased the results are because the "bad" farm's values are not included in the averages. On each of the runs the first and thirtieth years data were reported and analyzed. The data were tabulated and reported in the Appendix showing starting values and increases over the 30-year simulation defined by rows for each of the nine experiments. Eight balance sheet variables are reported by the columns.

The total number of bankruptcies for the runs are also tabulated in the appendix. These tables have the nine experiments reported in the rows of the tables with their corresponding number of bankruptcies represented by the columns. For analysis, the bankruptcies numbers are split into three periods, (1) years 1-10, (2) years 22-20, and (3) years 21-30 with the "total" column at the right side of the table. This procedure shows the most difficult period for farmers to survive financially given the stochastic environment of the model.

Basic Comparison

The basic comparison model simulates 30 years of operation of a typical family farm under the tax laws in effect in 1981. The tax laws include available tax advantages such as depreciation allowances, interest payment write-offs, and investment tax credits. The tax tables are indexed throughout the simulation, and self-employment taxes are calculated using current projections in rates and with earning ceilings indexed to inflation. Consumption is assumed to remain at \$12,600 in constant dollars. This provides a basis for comparing the increases of the balance sheet variables with all of the other experiments. The assumptions are favorable for savings and investment and thus the largest rates of growth and asset accumulations are expected in this compared to other experiments.

Constant Dollar Values

All of the financial results are reported and tabulated in constant 1979 dollars. This allows for simple comparisons among values derived with different inflation rates. Constant dollars place all values on a common basis so the beginning and ending data and real rates of growth can be evaluated.

Initial Tenure Experiment

The "initial tenure" experiment tests the impact of different starting positions on the rates of growth in discounted net worth for typical family farms. Different initial ownership positions affect growth rates in discounted net worth and appear to be correlated with the degree of initial leverage. The greatest rate of increase in net worth is in the initial full renter, primarily because of the low base value from which the growth rates are calculated. Both the initial full renters and the zero cash flow part-owners under the basic assumptions were able to expand land ownership within the 30-year growth horizon. The rate of increase was slowed by increasing the uncertainty, i.e. as the coefficient of income variation increased the amount of full-owned equity acres stopped increasing and even declined in the case of the zero-cash flow tenureship. Even though fully owned acres slowed and declined with increasing uncertainty, the mortgaged acres continued to increase but at a decreasing rate. The full renter consistently remained in the lower tax brackets, but as with the full owner and zero-cash flow situation the percentage of taxes paid per dollar of income increased as the coefficient of variation increased. The full owner's growth was restricted by higher tax brackets and the higher need to mine equity in cash deficit years. The greater absolute increase in acres for the full owner supports the view that the established owner-operator is in a position to outbid competitors This is especially true in the first half of the 30-year for land. simulation, where the full owner rapidly expands net worth. However, in the second 15 years of the simulation the full owner grows slower due to higher payments on land, mortgages, and taxes. In later years, higher proportion of mortgage payments are non-deductible principal payment rather than deductible interest payments. This causes the rate of net worth growth to be less than for the zero-cash flow and full renter in some cases. On the other side of the coin, the zero-cash flow and full renter grow slowly in the first half of the simulation but more rapidly in the second half because they have built up their income, savings and equity to allow for a more rapid expansion without the large mortgage principal payments associated with the full owner.

Alternative Consumption Experiment

The alternative consumption experiment changes the baseline case (constant minimum consumption levels regardless of income) to allow consumption to increase with income. This consumption function allocates 70 percent of the cash flow surplus for family living expenses beyond the \$12,600 minimum level. The implied marginal savings rate out of personal income is 30 percent. The increased consumption reduced investment and yearly cash flows, limiting the owner-operator's financial ability to service additional mortgages and firm expansion. This experiment had the greatest effect on firm growth among all experiments except non-indexing of taxes. In most cases the low-equity farms did not increase beyond the initial total acres operated, although they did increase full-equity acreage and mortgage acres. Thus they grew carefully, gaining full equity in more acres but not to the point where they were forced to mine equity to meet cash deficit years. These results held true for all levels of However, with higher coefficients of variation uncertainty tested. and equity/asset ratios, the number of farm failures increased.

Income Averaging for Tax Liabilities

The numbers in Tables 3 through 20 of the Appendix for the taxes paid are average values for the 100 iterations as stated previously. The tax liabilities are calculated by using income averaging, where taxable incomes of the four previous years are averaged and used along with the taxable income of the current year to account for total taxable income. The results show that as instability increases the tax liability for the farmer increases. Assuming a normal distribution of random numbers generated to adjust the coefficient of variation which in turn influences the farmer's income, there will be as many favorable years as unfavorable years. So with increased instability the taxes paid are higher, because it takes four consecutive years of negative cash flows for the average income plus a bad fifth year to pull tax liability to zero. By the same reasoning, with high instability when a good year is generated, the end result is a higher income than would have resulted with a lower coefficient of variation. So, with income averaging the tax liabilities are less than the value that would be owed if the high income year was used alone to generate taxes for that particular year. Another explanation centers around the fact that income taxes are progressive, so after tax income if graphed would show a line increasing at a decreasing rate. Any straight line drawn between two points on the curve would show the amount of after tax income with complete stability and the difference vertically between the curved line and the straight account for the higher taxes paid with uncertainty. This analysis of the effects of uncertainty is explained by Tweeten (1979, pp. 209-13).

Alternative Tax Policy Experiment

The four tax policy alternatives illustrate the importance of various tax concessions to farm growth. All available tax advantages in 1981 were used in the baseline case, and then each simulation thereafter had one tax advantage deleted. As shown in Tables 3 through 20 of the Appendix, capital improvement-intensive farms respond more to depreciation and investment tax credits, while land-oriented farms derive relatively more benefits from interest payment write-offs. The interest payment write-offs were extremely important for all farmers with expansion opportunities. The largest effect on all farm scenarios resulted from non-indexed income tax rates as apparent in the number of farm failures. The frequency of bankruptcies increased with higher values of the inflation rate, the coefficient of variation, and equity/asset ratios. Non-indexing places farmers in high tax brackets, reducing their ability to meet financial obligations. Removing any of the existing tax advantages would increase the tax liabilities of the farmers. Interest payment deductions appear to encourage expansion in acreage, while depreciation allowances and investment tax credits encourage the substitution of purchased capital such as machinery for other inputs.

Net Worth Analysis

Net worth is the difference between the current value of total assets and total liabilities. It is an indicator of accumulated

buying power, financial progress and the ability to control assets. The beginning net worth values and the increases of the 30-year simulation are reported in the tables containing the balance sheet variables in the Appendix. The compound annual percentage rate of increase in discounted net worth is reported in parentheses in the same tables. The highest growth rates were achieved by the farms with small initial equity and labor requirements.

The net worth increases analyzed among the various experiments were affected by the rate of inflation and initial ownership. With a 6 percent rate of inflation the growth in net worth increased as the coefficient of variation increased. This held true for all three of the initial ownership situations. The pattern of the growth rates in net worth among the different ownership scenarios did not hold at the 12 percent level of inflation. The full owner's rate of net worth growth decreased with each increase in income instability but the differences in growth were too small among coefficients of variation to be of concern. The remaining two initial ownership patterns resulted in increasing growth rates with increasing instability as they did with the 6 percent level of inflation.

The rate of inflation seems to interact with the various experiments to affect the accumulation of net worth. With a 6 percent inflation rate, the full owner's accumulation of equity was truncated most severely by the non-indexing of taxes. This led to several negative growth rates over the full 30 years, however the period from years 1-15 saw growth in the 3.0-3.5 percent range. The negative growth years occurred in the latter half of the 30-year period.

The next greatest impact for the 6 percent inflation full owner was from the interest write-off runs, followed closely by the higher consumption runs. The difference between the two was small, however.

With the zero-cash flow and the full renter at 6 percent inflation, the dominant experiment affecting net worth growth was the higher consumption. These low equity farmers have lower returns to land, labor, and management than the full owners. These "high-living" farmers are using 70 percent of their cash flow surplus on living expenses. So, with lower incomes this leaves few dollars for expansion in 40-acre units.

Major impacts at 12 percent inflation occurred for all initial tenureships with non-indexing of taxes. Non-indexing of taxes caused rapid mining of equity which led to many failures. The higher consumption runs proved to be the next most severe in slowing net worth accumulation. Once again with the full ownership case the interest write-off has large impacts on net worth growth.

The least restricting scenarios were (a) write-offs limited to one million dollars, (b) write-offs truncated by wealth (less than \$500,000 in net worth), and (c) write-offs truncated by income (less than \$36,000 in personal income). These rates of growth with all combinations of ownership, inflation, instability, and borrowing capacity were for all intensive purposes equivalent to the baseline case. Although some growth rates were slightly higher and some slightly lower, on the average all were close to the baseline comparison. These slight fluctuations are mainly due to luck of the draw of the random number generator.

Effects of Coefficient of Variation

The coefficient of variation, a value used to measure the instability in farmers' income, plays a very important part in this research. This value attempts to simulate the effects of drought, flood, supply, demand, government policies, and all other exogenous variables that directly or indirectly effect the farmer's personal income. Although the model allows for the sensitivity analysis of all scenarios, to accommodate limitations on time and space, a simple examination follows the interaction of the coefficient of variation with inflation, tax experiments and numbers of farm failures.

Interaction of Coefficient of Variation

and Inflation

Inflation greatly influence the starting positions available to entry-level farmers faced with debt financing. Inflation increases borrowing expenses through higher interest rates and creates cash flow barriers to acquiring ownership of assets.

The initial equity and farm size of the zero cash flow farmer show the impact on farm tenureship patterns resulting from an increase in inflation. The initial tenure positions were determined from the cash flow equation. The results show the maximum number of acres to which the operator can obtain title. Initial equity requirements vary with size of ownership. The zero cash flow initial position with 6 percent inflation is 55 fully owned acres and 128 mortgaged acres while at 12 percent inflation the numbers are 16 full-owned acres and 38 mortgaged acres. The remaining acres in the economic unit are rented. The full owner's and full renter's initial land ownership

rented. The full owner's and full renter's initial land ownership patterns are set by definition and thus are not altered by the inflation rates. The higher borrowing expenses associated with the 12 percent rate severely limits the mortgage that can be carried by the income on a 960 acre farm. For comparability, a 30 percent minimum equity is specified for all ownership situations.

The inflation rate coupled with the level of instability affected the different experiments by the level of impact with the various ownership patterns. With the full-owner arrangement the non-indexing of taxes had a major impact on slowing wealth accumulation at 6 and 12 percent inflation and all levels of instability. The next two severest impacts for the full owner were the interest write-off and the high consumption experiments. The 6 percent inflation for all levels of the coefficient of variation showed the interest write-off as having the second greatest impact on growth, followed by the higher consumption scenario. At the 12 percent level of inflation the higher consumption test affects net worth more than the interest write-offs. The overall growth rates for the full owner basic comparison were not much affected by the inflation rate, however as instability increased the growth in net worth slightly declined. This can be explained by the timing of the principal payments on expansion acres. The full owners expand rapidly in early years, and thus pay just the interest on land payments, this is where the impact of interest write-offs affects wealth accumulation. Then in the latter years of the 30-year scenario the large sums of principal payments have to be made from returns. So, with higher variability of income the bad years hit the farmer hard financially causing him to mine his equity, thus arriving at the slightly lower overall growths in net worth.

The experiment having the greatest affect on the full owner, affects the wealth accumulation of the zero cash flow and full renter ownership patterns to the greatest extent. However, the experiment with the major impact varies with inflation but remains consistent with increasing coefficients of variation. The high consumption experiment was the major experiment affecting the zero cash flow and full renter farmers, followed by the non-indexing experiment. held true for all levels of instability. However, as with the full owner, the non-indexing of taxes had the greatest impact of all experiments at the 12 percent inflation level for the zero cash flow and full renter scenarios. The overall accumulation of equity was slowed by the increase in inflation for the part owner and full renter. The rate of growth however, at both inflation rates, increased as the coefficient of variation increased. Low equity farmers are not able to grow as fast because of lower returns, however at high levels of instability they are poised to invest more in good years and take the risk of having to liquidate in bad years.

Inflation increases the cost of controlling an economic farming unit to the point where a full-time owner-operator must be a relatively high wealth individual to enter and survive in the farm economy. For highly leveraged farmers, cash flow available in the early years limits the farmer's ability to service mortgages and thus the potential for ownership of a farming unit.

Type of Ownership Acquired

The accumulation of equity whether in the early or late years is apparent in land purchases. The data show a definite pattern for the end results of the land holdings at the end of the 30-year period. For all tenureship patterns, levels of instability and rates of inflation the increases and decreases in total operated acres, full equity acres, and mortgaged acres are consistent. At the 6 percent inflation rate the highest increases or decreases in land results were in the categories of total operated acres and mortgaged acres. At the 12 percent inflation the greatest increases or decreases in land holdings when compared to the 6 percent rate fall in the fully owned acres category.

The full owners increased total acres operated under all instability conditions. However, with higher instability the number of fully owned acres declined as farmers were forced to mine their equity to meet expense obligations. The same pattern basically held for the part owner and full renter. However, the increase in total acres operated was very small compared to the full owner situation. At higher levels of instability the total acres operated sometimes never increased. The overall analysis indicates that at 6 percent inflation the full owner firms grew fairly rapidly in the early years but were forced to liquidate or mine their equity to meet later years' principal payments. This accounts for the 6 percent inflation scenarios having the greater increases in total operated and mortgaged acres but less of an increase in fully owned acres when compared to the 12 percent scenario.

The same logic holds for the zero cash flow and full renter The 6 percent inflation allows rapid growth early but situations. usually results in the mining away of the acquired equity in later years. The 12 percent inflation rate allows the farmer to acquire more fully owned acres. These acquired acres decline from full owner to full renter, but their values are important for zero cash flow part The total number of acres acquired in all owners and full renters. categories declines as instability increases. The key point here is at 12 percent inflation the part owner and full renter are able to acquire land at a rate so as to increase fully owned acres and mortgaged acres without increasing total farm size, so the farmer is becoming an established farm striving toward full ownership. Based upon the assumptions and the workings of the model, this result is a biased depiction of the real world.

Interaction of Coefficient of Variation and Tax Experiments

The full owner faces reduced growth in the experiment run without tax indexing. Under 12 percent rather than 6 percent inflation the rate of growth in discounted net worth declined drastically causing all 12 percent non-indexing runs to fail for all situations. For the full owner situations across all tax experiments with all levels of instability there was not a large difference between the growth rates at 6 percent as compared to 12 percent, except in the tax indexing experiment. As instability increased the non-indexing of taxes increasingly restricted growth in equity. With the increase of

inflation to 12 percent farmers were forced to pay higher taxes to the point of causing massive failures.

As with the full owner, for the zero cash flow and full renter farming situations the non-indexing test was the most restrictive expecially at 12 percent inflation compared to 6 percent. With the zero cash flow scenario at the .25 and .50 coefficients of variation the tax experiments were all more restrictive to wealth accumulation at 12 percent inflation, except for the interest write-off experiment which was less restrictive. This resulted from interest write-offs on early years expanded mortgage payments. The .75 coefficient of variation shows that all tests were more restrictive at 6 percent than 12 percent inflation except for the high consumption experiment. This latter result is possibly an anomaly caused by many farm failures at this rate of instability, leaving the reported data as averages of the few iterations that completed the 30-year period.

The full renter situation is restricted most by inflation for all tax experiments and for all levels of instability. In almost every case the full renter was able to expand total operated acres. The main exception was with 12 percent inflation and low levels of instability. The full renter was able however to obtain full equity ownership of some acres in debted ownership of close to 40 percent of the total acres. The growth in total farm size, equity acres, and mortgaged acres was generally lower with the high consumption and no depreciation allowance experiment. The depreciation allowance plays a greater role for the full renter due to the large proportion of assets in machinery. The depreciation tax benefit has less impact on the expansion of the land-dominated farms; however, the mechanized,

capital-intensive farms showed steady growth due to the depreciation allowance.

Rates of Taxation

One important policy issue is the effect of the tax policies on the structure of agriculture. The data presented in Table 2 of the Appendix show the rate of taxation as measured by taxes as percent of personal income and as a percent of net worth. The numbers represented in year 1 and year 30 are average percentages from the 100 iterations.

In the case of .25 coefficient of variation, the tax rates for year 30 are lower than the rates for the initial year. The full owner is taxed at a rate of 20 percent of income while the zero cash flow and full renter farmers are taxed at a rate of 5 percent. The lower tax rate in year 30 shows the effects of the tax benefits.

The .50 compared to the .25 coefficient of variation causes tax rates to increase. All tax rates increase and the smallest increase is for the full owner situation -- a 31.5 percent increase in tax rates. The zero cash flow part owner's and full renter's respective tax rates increased by 189 and 325 percent. Increases also occurred in taxes as percentage of net worth, with the full owner increase being the lowest and full renter the highest in percentage rate.

The results with high instability (.75 coefficient of variation) show the actual tax rates increasing over and above the .50 coefficient level. The year 30 average tax rates for the full owner, zero cash flow, and full renter are 41.81 percent, 25.3 percent and 32.2 percent, respectively. The full owner's increase over the .50

variation level was 57.5 percent. This says for the full owner the resulting percentage increase between the levels of instability increased as instability increased. The opposite was true for the part-owner and full renter. The increase between the medium and highest level of instability was 145 percent for zero cash flow and 260 percent for the full renter. So, the average in tax rates between the various levels of instability increased at a decreasing rate. The results at the high level of instability could be biased by the same effect of the number of bankruptcies associated with the highly unstable scenarios. (The increasing tax rates over time under high coefficients of variation result in part because low income farmers become illiquid and exit farming. Because such operators are expected to exit farming, they are not included in the farm averages.)

The overall analysis would seem to point to the fact that even though the full owner is taxed at a rate higher than the other two ownership situations, he is still able (or forced) to take more advantage of tax policies as stability declines. The evaluation seems clear by looking at the highest instability level. The full owner is taxed at the highest rate, followed by the full renter, then the zero cash flow case. This seems to suggest that the zero cash flow operator over the 30-year period has acquired enough equity to allow him to make use of the tax advantages to a higher degree. The full owner even though facing the highest rate in the tax schedule is still receiving benefits from the tax credits and deductions. He has enough land and other equity that his income and returns are higher in good years, but with the income averaging his tax liability is lower than it would be without income averaging. The initial full renter has not

acquired sufficient income to make full use of the tax credits and deductions.

The above results suggest an area for future research. It may be possible to develop an optimal ownership pattern at various levels of instability to take maximum advantage of tax policies.

Farm Failures

Appendix Tables 21 through 38 show number of farm failures associated with the 100 iterations of each of the farm scenarios. The failures are reported in three time periods: (a) 1-10 years, (b) 11-20 years, and (c) 21-30 years. The fourth column gives the total number of bankruptcies out of 100. The rows consist of the three initial tenure situations, each followed by the nine experiments evaluated. The failures recorded on these tables are the farm situations that did not survive the 30 years because of random outcomes and the constraints placed on runs by the equity/asset ratios. None of the failures are figured into the averages of the balance sheet variables as previously reported.

By far the largest single factor affecting the number of failures was the non-indexing of taxes. The severity of this experiment was most pronounced at the 12 percent level of inflation. The 12 percent level had complete failure of all 100 iterations for each situation. Attention here lies with the time period in which the failures occurred. At the lowest level of instability and minimum equity/asset ratio of 0.0, all failures occurred in the last period (21-30 years). As the equity/asset ratio was increased to .20, a few of the bankruptcies began to appear in the second period (11-20 years), and

with the full renter 2 failures even occurred in the first period (1-10 years). The dominant failures area was the second period with the equity ratio raised to .40. As the coefficient of variability increases along with the equity ratio, the number of bankruptcies become largest in the first period. With the instability at a constant level, by raising the equity/asset ratio from 0.0 to .40 the failures begin to appear in the first period. The number of first period failures is inversely related to amount of fully owned equity, i.e. as ownership declines from full owner to full renter, the total bankruptcies in years 1 to 10 increase.

With low levels of instability no failures occurred from any source except the 12 percent tax indexing case until the full renter scenario at variability coefficient .25 and equity/asset ratio .20. In most cases the first period had the majority of the failures at 6 percent and 12 percent inflation. The total failures were few, somewhere around 5 to 12 percent of the 100 iterations. The high consumption and depreciation allowance experiments showed the lowest numbers of bankruptcies. This tends to support the previous findings that higher consumption farms grow less, thus avoiding financial trouble from high principal payments on expanded acreage in later years. The depreciation allowance results rely on the analyses previously mentioned that full renters have a high proportion of their equity in machinery.

At the .40 equity level, 6 percent inflation and non-indexing caused a large number of failures in the third time period. In the 12 percent inflation case the majority of failures was in the second period, with the remaining ones in the third period.

By increasing the coefficient of income variability to .50, bankruptcies were almost nonexistent at the 0.0 equity/asset level. The full renter experiment with higher consumption did however have 20 failures at 6 percent inflation and 25 at 12 percent inflation. Each of the runs had 15 of the failures in the third period, once again showing the importance of high principal payments in later years at higher coefficients of variation.

At the .50 coefficient of variation, the number of farm failures drastically increases for the part-owner and full renter as the equity/asset ratio required for solvency is raised to .20. The only failures occurring at either inflation rate for the full owner came without tax indexing. The zero cash flow situations at 6 and 12 percent inflation show bankruptcies of all runs at the 50 percent level. major exception lies with the high consumption experiment which only had 6 failures. The 12 percent high consumption test showed 41 failures, which was the lowest. The low accumulation of equity under by this scenario divorces farmers high numbers of failures caused over By far the largest number of failures came in the first period, followed by the second, then the third period. The same is true for the full renter; however, the full renter definitely has more failures than the zero cash flow case. The 6 percent inflation runs have more total failures than the 12 percent runs with the full renter, with the zero-cash flow operator failures showing nearly the same failure rate at both levels of inflation. The full renter's failures were extremely large in the first period. This results from low-equity base farmers having low revenue generated to meet financial obligations. The model calculates income from returns on equity of

the owner-operator. So, a full renter starting from a 30 percent equity level in machinery is very susceptible to failure from a bad year with a borrowing capacity limited by the .20 equity/asset ratio. When the equity/asset ratio is raised to .40, the major change in the full owner came at 6 percent inflation. The 12 percent scenarios only had failures in the tax indexing experiment. The failures associated with the runs of 6 percent inflation were quite increased, so presumably there were several situations close to failure at the .20 equity/asset level. Approximately two-thirds of the failures occurred in the second time period because rapid expansion in early years left farms vulnerable to economic setbacks. The three experiments -higher consumption, interest write-offs, and depreciation allowance -were the slowest growing situations except indexing of taxes. In this case the farmers expanded rapidly in the early year causing massive mining of equity in later years which showed very low or even negative growth rate in years 15 through 30, thus leaving a small overall average growth for the full 30-year period.

The .75 coefficient of variation follows basically the same patterns as previously set forth. The main difference is that more failures occur at 6 percent inflation compared to 12 percent with the higher equity/asset ratios. This can be seen by looking at the total failures at .20 and .40 equity ratios. The results could be affected by the luck of the draw of good and bad years at these high levels of income variability along with the fact that many farms are on the verge of failure at any given level of borrowing capacity and with the next increase of the equity/asset ratio they fail.

Impacts on Structure

The issue of structure in agriculture needs to be dealt with to see how various policies either purposely or inadvertantly affects the whole of farming organization. Several questions arise. What have the policies researched herein influenced structure? How well do the assumptions square with reality? How does one deal with behavioral problems in the assumptions? How would different assumptions affect the results? These questions along with many others make research pertinent to arrive at accurate analysis of the various policies.

This study overstates the rate of farm failure in the real world for several reasons. The model does not include income from off-farm sources other than income from excess farm labor. One such source of off-farm income is royalty in oil and gas or other financial investments. Such income could cushion land payments in cash deficit years. A strong force that is behavioral in nature and would significantly affect the number of farm failures is in the borrowing of money or mining of equity to meet financial obligations. Perhaps assumptions different than those used in the model would more accurately simulate reality of this behavioral variable. The later years impact heavily on the farmers in the model trying to pay principal on expansion acres purchased earlier in the period without ability to deduct such payment from income taxes. In the "real" world the farmer usually will refinance loans to avoid heavy payments at the The mining of equity is in effect a refinancing method, however based upon the assumptions the "real" world is not fully simulated. The model's equity-mining procedure takes the dollar value from full

equity acres, which reduces full-equity acres. The acres are then classified as mortgaged acres. In reality if a farmer runs into cash flow difficulty he will liquidate his mortgaged acres where he can remain with his original fully owned acres.

The results are averages of the 100 iterations; however, when an iteration farm fails and does not reach year 30 its values are not used in the averages of the variables. This causes the average reported variables to be overstated, because with high numbers of failures only the lucky farms with higher incomes are reflected in the averages. The less favorable income and balance sheet results of failed farms are disregarded. To the extent such operators exit farming and successful operators take over their farming operations, results herein are realistic.

However, the basic problems of growth and survivability can be addressed from the results of the model. The failed farms make room for expansion of surviving farms. Only so much land currently is in agricultural production. So if policies make it easier to expand, then obviously not every farmer can expand his acres. If farm policies encourage growth of individual farms beyond the amount of land normally coming available because of death, retirement, or poor management practices, then some farmers must fail. The results of this paper clearly show that the full owner can acquire more total acres than the zero cash flow part owner or full renter. At the low levels of instability the part owner and full renter increase their fully owned acreages with little or no increase in total acres farmed. So the high-equity farmers clearly can buy up the available land faster than the other farm situations considered. This holds true for

all of the equity/asset ratios restrictions placed on mining of equity to meet cash deficit years. Results suggest that tax features encourage expansion of farms and lead to fewer and larger farms, especially in an unstable environment. Initial ownership is extremely important to growth and survivability of farmers. The more stable the prices, the better off the zero cash flow and full renter. But as instability and inflation increases they are less able to expand compared to the high-equity, high-income farmer. The full owner tends to bid the price of land up to the point where other farmers cannot afford to purchase additional acres.

CHAPTER V

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

This study applies a model for evaluating selected federal policies as they affect the growth and survivability of typical Oklahoma family farms. The farm's growth and survivability under the various assumed levels of inflation, initial ownership, coefficients of variation, equity/asset ratios, and tax policies were evaluated using a stochastic computer simulation model and the results reported.

The coefficient of variation was applied to net income to reflect various rates of instability facing the farm firm. The equity/asset ratio was used as a measure of a farm's borrowing capacity. The farmer "mined" his equity within the constraints of the ratio to meet financial liabilities in cash deficit years. The specific tax policies examined in this research include tax credits on investments, deductions of interest expenses, indexation of tax rate schedules, and depreciation allowances.

The above situations were evaluated under two levels of inflation. Inflation is considered to be part of the policy environment and has been tied to the farmer's cash flow problem. Early periods of cash deficits decrease the ownership accessibility of land for low wealth entrants and marginal existing farmers. Those who survive become established farmers who in later periods of high cash surplus can outbid potential farmers and low-equity farmers for land.

The inflation rate did not have much of an effect on the rate of growth in net worth. However, higher inflation rates effectively restrict entrants into farming by raising land prices relative to income, creating cash flow problems and making it difficult for individuals to pay for land purchases out of income derived from the land.

With inflation induced increases in equity requirements and cash flow problems, farmers have had to develop new methods to get into farming and even continue in farming. Some of the methods most used to cope with inflated land prices and higher mortgage rates include external financing, off-farm employment, and land rental to gain control of an economic-sized farming unit.

The termination of favorable tax treatments would be catastrophic to a financially weak owner who purchased land with expectations of continuing tax benefits. The non-indexing of taxes had extreme implications to all farm ownership situations. The next largest benefit was the interest write-off for the full owner and to a lesser extent for the zero cash flow part owner. The full renter was greatly affected by the depreciation allowances because of the high proportion of machinery in his total assets. These benefits tend to leverage farm land purchases, thus accelerating the trend toward fewer and larger farms. Higher growth rates permitted by utilization of income tax provisions increase competition for land which would crowd out some farmers. The full owner is in the best financial position to compete for land. Progressive tax rates appear to lower this advantage. Limitations on dollar amounts of tax deductions and

credits would reduce tendencies for tax policies to encourage large farms to grow even larger.

Farm failures increase as instability increases especially in the case of the part owner and full renter. These low equity farmers are unable to meet cash obligations of the farm operations during bad years unless they have been able to acquire considerable equity fairly early. Instability enhances opportunities for the full owner to compete for available land, thus increasing the trend toward fewer and larger farms. The high consumption experiment illustrates that substantial real growth can be expected for farmers oriented to savings and investment at the expense of consumption for all levels of instability.

Each farming operation begins with owning or renting a typical commercial farming unit, with growth measured by accumulation of owned acres, first by purchasing formerly rented acres and then by expanding the size beyond the initial family size. The conclusion that cash flow is a major limiting factor in firm growth is consistent with previous analysis emphasizing the contribution of inflation to the cash flow problem. This phenomenon is especially apparent in the full renter and zero cash flow cases at high levels of instability.

Limitations and Areas for Future Research

The above situations were all simulated to determine how inflation, instability, borrowing limitations, and tax policies can influence the structure, growth, ownership, and survivability of family farms. Conclusions can be drawn based on these results, but it

must be recognized that the model has definite limitations when applied to structural and behavioral consequences apparent in the real world.

The model has several simplifying assumptions and computational shortcuts, and selected changes could improve the model. The problem affecting the payback of mortgages on land could be improved by allowing for refinancing opportunities to ease later years' burdens on principal payments. This would more effectively represent the real world.

Emphasis in this study was on growth over 30 years but more attention might be given to growth for individual years or short groups of years. This procedure would provide a better understanding of when the largest growth occurs and when growth is most limited for all levels of initial ownership.

The model could also be altered to better reveal how the level of instability affects the consumption rates of the various farm ownership levels. Results herein from fixed consumption and linear consumption functions related to income are of necessity oversimplified. A floating level of consumption would be related in various functional forms to the yearly level of income.

The "with or without" approach to policy variables tends to distort the resulting rates of growth and the implications for structural changes in agriculture. That is, termination of tax features would set in motion a whole chain of adjustments in land prices, output and other variabiles not considered herein. More information on coefficients of variation on net incomes and the affects of unanticipated increases and decreases in inflation on

growth, savings, and consumption are needed to more accurately draw conclusions for public policy.

Conclusions

This study evaluated the impact of federal fiscal-monetary policies on the economic structure of typical family farms in a stochastic environment. Yearly income fluctuations were simulated for various coefficients of variation.

Growth rates were not markedly influenced by inflation. But inflation greatly affects entry. Inflation directly effects mortgage current land earnings relative to interest as evidenced by cash-flow problems for highly leveraged farmers. Cash-flow problems are reflected in lower total farm growth and the higher rate of failures of the low equity farmers. Failures were even more frequent at higher level of instability. Cash-flow limitations highly influenced the ownership possibilities available for a would-be farmer with a given equity. Growth which must be financed by internalized sources, is restrained by this cash flow in early years and accelerated in later years by cash-flow surplus. A pattern of slow initial growth in early years with more rapid growth in later years was typical for the low equity farmers. This is in contrast to the full equity farmer, who expanded every favorable year in the early part of the 30-year horizon and found himself mining equity in later years.

Tax policies affected different ownership situations in varying levels of expansion opportunities. Indexing of taxes had major impacts on the rate of wealth accumulation and farm failures. The effects of interest write-offs were very important to expanding

farmers. By reducing interest payments from taxes, they are more readily available to make it through low cash flow years. The full renter initial owner makes use of the depreciation allowances, because he has a high proportion of his assets in machinery.

REF ERENCES

- Barry, Peter J., John A. Hopkin and C. B. Baker. <u>Financial</u>

 <u>Management in Agriculture</u>. 2nd edition. Danville, Illinois:

 Interstate Printers and Publishers, 1979.
- Dean, Ricky Melvin. "Evaluation of Public and Private Risk Management

 Alternatives on Agricultural Producers in Southwest Oklahoma."

 (Unpublished Master's Thesis, Oklahoma State University, 1981.)
- Eginton, Charles W. "Impacts of Federal Tax Policies on Growth in Size of Typical Farms." American Journal of Agricultural Economics. 62(December 1980): 929-39.
- Eginton, Charles W. "Impacts of Selected Federal Policies on Rates of Growth in Size of Typical Family Farms." Ph.D. Dissertation, Oklahoma State University, 1982.
- Fawcett, David and Ted Thornton. "Typical Farm Data Series."

 Washington, D.C.: U.S. Department of Agriculture, ESCS, forthcoming.

- Hardin, Mike L. "Computerized Oklahoma State Farm Income and Detailed Enterprise Record." Oklahoma Cooperative Extension Service, Department of Agricultural Economics, Oklahoma State University, 1982.
- Hutton, R. F. Agricultural Production Systems Simulation:

 Introduction to Simulation. Vernon R. Eidman, editor.

 Stillwater: Oklahoma State University, 1971.
- Melichar, Emanuel. "Capital Gains Versus Current Income in the Farming Sector." American Journal of Agricultural Economics. 61(1979): 1085-92.
- Tweeten, Luther and Steve Griffin. General Inflation and the Farming

 Economy. Research Report P-732. Stillwater: Agricultural

 Experiment Station, Oklahoma State University, 1976.
- Tweeten, Luther. <u>Foundations of Farm Policy</u>. 2nd edition, revised.

 Lincoln and London: University of Nebraska Press, 1979.
- Tweeten, Luther. "An Economic Investigation into Inflation

 Passthrough to the Farm Sector." Western Journal of

 Agricultural Economics. 5(December 1980): 89-137.
- Tweeten, Luther. Farmland Pricing and Cash flow in an Inflationary

 Economy. Research Report P-811. Stillwater: Agricultural

 Experiment Station, Oklahoma State University, June 1981.

- Tweeten, Luther. "Prospective Changes in U.S. Agricultural Structure." Food and Agricultural Policy for the 1980s. D. Gale Johnson, editor. Washington, D.C.: American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research, pp. 113-146, 1981b.
- U.S. 1982 Master Tax Guide. Chicago, Illinois: Commerce Clearing House, Inc., 1982.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture. <u>Structure Issues of American</u>

 <u>Agriculture</u>. Report 438. Washington, D.C.: Economics,

 Statistics and Cooperatives Service, 1979.

Guide to the Appendix Tables

The following information is intended to simplify the interpretation of the large amount of data presented from the simulation runs. Table 1 presents the data acquired to derive the coefficient of variation on net farm income. Table 2 shows the rate that the simulated farmers were taxed. It presents the range, average, standard deviation and coefficient of variation on income and related variables. These values are associated with 11 individual farms and their respective data for the year 1972-1981. The values show tax rate percentages for the three ownership situations in year 1 and year 30.

Tables 3 through 20 present the selected balance sheet variables of the simulation runs. The tables are organized by coefficient of variation, equity/asset ratio and inflation. The tables start with the lowest values of coefficient of variation and equity/asset ratios at the 6 percent inflation rate. The equity/asset ratio is increased for each simulation to its highest value (0.0 to .20 to .40), then the coefficient of variation level is increased and the equity/asset increased at each level. Each coefficient of variation and equity/asset ratio is presented at 6 percent followed in the next table by the 12 percent inflation simulation. Each table shows values for the full owner, zero-cash flow and full renter scenarios.

The rows depict the year 1 values of the balance sheet variables followed by the increase after the 30 years for each of the tax experiments. The rows designated by the asterisks are yearly average

increases or decreases of the year one values. The columns present the balance sheet variables in 1979 dollars and acres, as noted in the tables. Most of the variables are basic values normally used, however some need further explanation. Personal income reported is net return total factors (land, labor, capital, and management) contributed to production by the farm operator. Columns for savings report the initial year and the increase or decrease in thirty years of personal income minus taxes paid. The resulting value then has the consumption level subtracted to arrive at the savings value reported.

The section reporting accumulated acreages gives a measure of changes in size for the various initial tenureships and experiments. the values of full equity and mortgaged acres are calculated from financial data and the current value of land. The difference (although not reported) between acres operated and acres fully owned and mortgaged is rented acreage.

All increases or decreases are values over the 30-year simulations for farms that survived. The blanks in the tables resulted from all 100 iterations of any particular experiment producing failures.

Tables 21 through 38 report the number of farm failures of each 100 iterations. The tables are ordered as are the previous mentioned set of tables, arranged by coefficient of variation, equity/asset ratio, and inflation. The rows are represented by the ownership scenarios with each followed by the nine experiments. The columns are split into three 10-year periods to analyze timing of bankruptcies. These three periods are summed into the last column, the total column.

Table 1. The Actual Range, Average, Standard Deviation and Coefficient of Variation for the Individual Farms, 1972-1981

. Farm Variable	Minimum Value	Maximum Value	Mean	Standard Deviation	Coefficient of Variation
Farm 1					
Income	-55,375.35	219,475.65	54,559.64	91.847.04	168.34
% Equity	59	80	68.4	6.93	10.13
% Crop	23	87	54.4	22.99	42.28
Farm 2					
Income	18,271.89	57,021.09	33,627.52	14,422.00	42.88
% Equity	79	95	87.9	5.43	6.17
% Crop	32	79	59.2	16.44	27.77
Farm 3					
Income	-25,106.84	79,764.18	48,932.45	33,569.91	68.61
% Equity	79	92	86	5.01	5.83
% Crop	31	67	46.7	11.17	23.91
Farm 4	24 705 74	77 (46 62	17 000 50	15 000 01	22.17
Income	26.795.74	77,646.63	47,988.52	15,903.91	33.14
% Equity % Crop	78 43	90 62	85 52 . 5	4.19 6.29	4.93
% Crop	43	02	32.3	0.29	11.98
Farm 5 Income	2 079 09	122 277 09	22 220 1/	26 976 59	11/ 06
% Equity	-3,978.08 50	123,377.98 80	32,329.14 65.4	36,876.58 8.79	114.06
% Equity % Crop	10	78	37.2	19.12	13.45 51.39
Tanan 6					
Farm 6 Income	-10,120,45	23,672.99	10,880,17	9,698.11	89.14
% Equity	51	69	57.9	6.37	10.99
% Crop	2	75	40.20	20.95	52.11
Farm 7					
Income	10,846.29	178,125.12	83.750.57	55,272.29	65.99
% Equity	86	97	91.5	3.63	3.97
% Crop	20	100	71.10	37.36	52.54
Farm 8					
Income	-50,931.26	85,015.59	21,449.10	46,970.40	218.98
% Equity	18	43	30.4	9.97	32.79
% Crop	7	98	28.10	27.65	98.38
Farm 9					
Income	4,867.26	75,228.57	30,773.14	22,247.34	72.30
% Equity	76	90	81.7	4.74	5.80
% Crop	24	76	45.7	13.71	30.00
Farm 10					
Income	27,399.85	170,064.90	93.652.37	40,272.82	43.00
% Equity	29	67	50.2	14.16	28.22
% Crop	21	73	44.2	16.05	36.31
Farm 11					
Income	-43,491.83	203,591.74	50,663.58	61,053.82	120.51
% Equity	65	87	77.90	6.62	8.50
% Crop	66	98	82.20	9.93	12.08

Table 2. Rate of Taxation on Personal Income and Net Worth in Percentage Terms

	Taxation (Percentage of Income)	Taxation (Percentage (of Net Worth)
	Per	cent
Year l Values:		
Full Owner	20.20	1.16
Zero Cash Flow	5.81	0.72
Full Renter	5.39	1.56
Year 30 Values		
.25 Coefficient of Variation	n n	
Full Owner	20.17	0.68
Zero Cash Flow	3.56	0.14
Full Renter	2.10	0.10
.50 Coefficient of Variation	$oldsymbol{\mathfrak{n}}$	
Full Owner	26.54	0.78
Zero Cash Flow	10.32	0.27
Full Renter	8.93	0.43
.75 Coefficient of Variation		
Full Owner	41.81	1.16
Zero Cash Flow	25.29	0.61
Full Renter	32.19	0.75

Table 3. Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

ti dikinangan dan Mariti di Kalamatan kemanya di kalambir atau nabuaran kan kataban dan dan di kataban dan dikad	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			- 1979 Dol	lars			- Acres	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR I	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	63,904 * 5,269	12,874 -3,356	49,318 20,312	2,638,305 (4.06%)	4,149,025	4,307	161	4,146
W/O Tax Indexing	57,351 * 13,696	226,346 60,783	-171,010 -35,648	-54,483 (-0.04%)	99,951	1,635	130	1,505
W/ Higher Consumption	25,819 * 1,958	5,007 -1,968	30,020 43,957	1,153,102 (2.37%)	1,759,851	1,870	203	1,667
W/O Interest Write-off	36,219 * 4,055	33,960 19,726	312 -4,284	1,102,028 (2,25%)	1,664,051	1,831	66	1,765
W/O Depreciation Allowance	44,158 * 9,024	21,667 5,858	20,703 14,711	1,888,769 (3,29%)	2,819,500	2,939	152	2,787
W/O Investment Tax Credit	51,120 * 6,035	13,'077 -1,819	42,235 19,510	2,448,649 (3,88%)	3,810,846	3,946	166	3,780
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	66,278 * 7,848	13,207 -2,400	51,299 21,947	2,657,145 (4.07%)	4,215,678	4,366	154	4,212
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	th 68,055 * 7,389	14,927 -2,759	51,799 21,837	2,625,166 (4.04%)	4,097,801	4,270	155	4,115
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	me 66,115 * 4,155	13,727 -3,649	50,590 19,508	2,588,328 (4.01%)	4,089,387	4,248	147	4,101

Table 3. (Continued)

	PERSONAL				OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS 1979 Dol	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
•			19/9 DOI	lars			Acres	
INITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW			e ^c					
VALUES IN YEAR 1	14,574	847	1,127	117,055	250,940	960	55	128
increase Over 30 Years					•			
Basic Consumption	12,731 4 4,196	127 -341	11,715 16,970	578,159 (6.29%)	887,986	213	29	920
W/O Tax Indexing	19,351 * 6,037	35,124 5,458	-17,192 12,883	329,691 (4.74%)	335,795	0	24	443
W/ Higher Consumption	8,033 * 4,981	-32 -281	4,523 19,301	152,287 (2.90%)	89,719	0	21	101
W/O Interest Write-off	13,076 4 4,930	3,689 1,137	8,267 16,131	356,614 (4.95%)	441,201	0	22	466
W/O Depreciation Allowance	11,448 * 4,263	2,034 402	8,491 16,242	463,979 (5.65%)	649,111	45	31	662
W/O investment Tax Credit	10,556 * 3,888	466 -248	9,253 16,558	553,412 (6.18%)	839,052	168	29	855
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	13,874 * 3,801	31 ~399	12,864 16,637	567,179 (6.24%)	869,732	210	30	907
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	12,743 * 4,609	160 ~316	11,688 17,366	571,101 (6.30%)	887,021	223	26	922
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	13,270 4 4,687	216 -305	12,179 17,435	564,401 (6.24%)	877,470	213	26	914

Table 3. (Continued)

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS - 1979 Dol	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
INITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	18,945	1,022	5,322	65,169	65,169	960	0	0
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	7,149 -511	-474 -750	6,770 12,725	461,525 (7.44%)	799,421	68	40	821
W/O Tax Indexing *	12,555 707	27,873 3,239	-16,625 9,867	273,474 (5.87%)	380,322	0	37	45 2
W/ Higher Consumption	-1,238 -1,049	-707 -729	960 16,079	47,047 (1.90%)	74,682	0	20	83
W/O Interest Write-off	7,447 68	2,508 655	3,985 11,843	331·,864 (6.45%)	516,142	0	38	527
W/O Depreciation Allowance	5,856 524	740 -442	4,338 13,383	381,675 (6.87%)	623,281	13	48	615
W/O Investment Tax Credit	6,091 -96	-26 -744	5,346 13,115	448,601 (7.38%)	770,525	51	44	781
W/ Write offs Limited to 1M *	3,356 -604	-627 -768	3,294 12,639	479,103 (7.45%)	845,974	97	45	851
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth *	6,681 -244	-450 -724	6,318 12,953	479,218 (7.58%)	827,247	79	44	845
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income *	6,152 -496	-475 -740	5,812 12,726	466,522 (7.49%)	816,251	. 81	40	838

Table 4. Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OW NE D		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			17/7	011413			acres	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER			•					
ALUE IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	24,931 * -12,941	519 -7,371	24,098 6,824	2,581,781 (4.00%)	3,573,427	3,743	442	3,340
W/O Tax Indexing	*	<u>-</u>						
W/ Higher Consumption	12,315 * -6,820	782 -4,270	15,800 38,794	993,033 (2.12%)	1,304,767	1,447	277	1,170
W/O Interest Write-off	16,141 * -4,115	28,882 16,573	-13,114 -8,454	1,236,099 (2.44%)	1,635,024	1,814	250	1,564
W/O Depreciation Allowance ●	39,792 * -5,025	20,376 80	19,053 7,228	2,084,925 (3.50%)	2,767,258	2,958	413	2,545
W/O Investment Tax Credit	25,165 * -10,215	3,599 -5,963	21,258 8,137	2,497,607 (3.92%)	3,451,049	3,653	449	3,203
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	22,085 * -12,551	-1,237 -7,285	23,007 7,133	2,620,988 (4.03%)	3,606,754	3,811	440	3,370
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealt	th 29,333 * -9,808	657 6575, 6-	28,364 9,164	2,598,739 (4.02%)	3,589,343	3,794	450	3,344
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Incom	ne 22,983 * -11,211	-583 -6,819	23,251 8,012	2,608,737 (4.02%)	3,607,462	3,811	442	3,369

500 0

Table 4. (Continued)

•;		PERSONAL INCOME	TAXES PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTCACED
				1979 I				Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW									
ALUE IN YEAR 1		15,087	734	1,752	78,014	117,762	960	16	38
ncrease Over 30 Years									
Basic Comparison	*,	3,644 1,144	-388 -451	3,786 14,253	347,674 (6.00%)	452,405	0	76	429
W/O Tax Indexing	*								
W/ Higher Consumption	*	35 2 308	-552 -589	1,030 16,447	67,117 (2.13%)	48,524	0	15	61
W/O Interest Write-off	*	4,964 904	1,434	3,227 13,416	283,266 (5.40%)	342,405	0	65	325
W/O Depreciation Allowance	*	4,257 1,508	525 -95	3,446 14,230	289,630 (5.49%)	356,308	0	68	329
W/O Investment Tax Credit	*	3,258 475	-263 -511	3,273 13,639	359,267 (6.08%)	462,529	0	77	436
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	*	4,221 874	-412 -480	4,378 14,011	364,725 (6.13%)	469,641	0	77	446
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wea	lth .*	3,385 378	-403 -517	3,525 13,553	356,131 (6.03%)	457,424	1	76	436
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inc	ome	5,075 1,487	-304 -411	5,106 14,556	360,445 (6.13%)	465,314	. 1	75	441

Table 4. (Continued)

	PERSONAL INCOME	TAXES	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 D			-'	Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	19,001	992	5,408	65,587	65,587	960	0	0
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-646 -3,013	-766 -822	-127 10,465	332,555 (6.42%)	466,188	0	79	438
W/O Tax Indexing								
W/ Higher Consumption *	-3,770 -2,725	-799 -823	-463 15,054	22,352 (1.01%)	34,875	0	13	52
W/O Interest Write-off *	1,831 -2,267	1,125 -97	415 10,459	290,800 (6.03%)	391,150	0.	74	365
W/O Depreciation Allowance	-769 -2,989		-482 10,757	279,057 (5.90%)	382,207	0	73	354
W/O Investment Tax Credit	938 -2, 233	-554 -880	1,233 11,295	333,924 (6.44%)	464,647	0	83	439
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M *	1,224 -2,336	-686 -758	1,653 11,084	339,589 (6.49%)	473,718	1	82	448
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth *	565 -2, 485	-671 -757	977 10,928	342,763 (6.53%)	476,249	0	80	451
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income *	326 -3,290	-741 -846	803 10,210	341,164 (6.49%)	476,753	0	81	455

Table 5. Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	PERSONAL				OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	- 1979 Dol	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			- 19/9 DOI	lars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	52,625 5,269	7,961 -3,356	42,976 20,313	2,597,633 (4.02%)	4,090,210	4,216	161	4,055
W/O Tax Indexing	64,319 14,657	241,714 60,954	-179,411 -34,849	-66,789 (-0.08%)	87,887	1,613	122	1,491
W/ Higher Consumption *	28,409 1,263	5,924 -2,230	31,139 43,691	1,148,920 (2.36%)	1,756,459	1,870	205	1,665
W/O Interest Write-off	29,967 4,348	30,414 19,456	-2,341 -3,723	1,089,647	1,645,117	1,812	58	1,754
W/O Depreciation Allowance	50,031 6,184	25,270 4,890	22,898 12,838	1,907,267 (3.31%)	2,836,071	2,965	154	2,811
W/O Investment Tax Credit	67,121 7,760	17,456 -1,308	47,877 20,719	2,460,276 (3.89%)	3,840,631	4,006	174	3,832
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M *	64,376 4,403	13,829 -3,349	48,877 19,474	2,611,059 (4.03%)	4,145,346	4,315	139	4,176
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth *		14,513 -2,346	55,513 22,170	2,573,483 (4.00%)	4,068,395	4,241	157	4,084
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income *	62,892 2,886	11,982 -3,981	49,121 18,570	2,554,064 (3,97%)	4,053,298	4,214	147	4,067

Table 5. (Continued)

	PERSONA			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	OWNED		FARM SIZE	
•	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS 1979 Dol	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGEI
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
ALUES IN YEAR I	14,574	270	1,127	117,055	250,940	960	55	128
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Conparison	15,472 * 5,072	270 -304	14,221 17,804	569,633 (6.28%)	880,340	219	33	918
W/O Tax Indexing	17,133 * 5,849	30,470 5,174	-14,671 12,989	319,151 (4.62%)	322,325	0	22	423
W/ Higher Consumption	8,091 * 4,126	-49 -363	4,378 18,826	162,907 (3.02%)	109,853	-1	25	118
W/O Interest Write-off	11,614 * 4,804	3,223 1,131	7,360 16,015	363,291 (5.00%)	448,460	-1 .	22	472
W/O Depreciation Allowance	13,321 * 5,215	2,363 464	9,984 17,127	475,999 (5.73%)	661,264	62	34	674
W/O Investment Tax Credit	14,356 * 4,743	823 -177	12,781 17,346	553,990 (6.19%)	833,763	174	31	859
W/ Write-offs Limited to 18	11,246 * 3,766	-82 -424	10,527 16,629	580,288 (6.31%)	894,155	214	33	914
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	h 11,569 * 4,362	-117 -361	10,854 17,151	574,445 (6.30%)	908,610	214	39	913
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	e 11,510 * 4,236	-113 -342	10,801 17,027	521,254 (6.16%)	847,967	192	27	877

Table 5. (Continued)

,		PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
		INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
				- 1979 Dol	lars			Acres	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER									
ALUES IN YEAR I		18,945	1,022	5,322	65,169	65,169	960	0	0
ncrease Over 30 Years									
Basic Comparison	*	7,327 -764	-489 - 775	6,952 12,473	481,807	836,041	91	47	845
. W/O Tax Indexing	*	10,280 618	23,580 3,272	-14,485 9,731	295,433 (6.11%)	404,634	0	41	471
W/ Higher Consumption	*	-728 -684	-693 -738	1,154 16,370	55,747 (2.22%)	85,095	. 0	22	90
W/O Interest Write-off	*	7,010 608	2,537 780	3,541 12,241	341,441 (6.54%)	529,331	0	40	533
W/O Depreciation Allowance	*	-13,578 366	836 -462	4,738 13,268	358,494 (6.70%)	567,437	2	44	566
W/O Investment Tax Credit	*	4,643 -619	-356 -886	4,283 12,725	454,373 (7.41%)	791,193	. 50	46	792
W/ Write-off Limited to IM	*	8,277 -604	-441 -739	7,852 12,627	443,611 (7.33%)	765,521	51	38	793
W/ Write-offs Truncated by	Wealth *	4,125 -770	-603 -785	4,012 12,494	469,964 (7.51%)	826,092	69	43	835
W/ Write-offs Truncated by	Income	4,634 -448	-477 -750	4,395 12,775	477,240 (7.57%)	831,669	75	46	842

Table 6. Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	PERSONAL INCOME	TAXES	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 г	ollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	25,527 * 12,273	273 -7,268	24,924 7,400	2,618,561 (4.03%)	3,631,418	3,840	450	3,389
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	14,644 * -5,379	1,919 -3,766	16,077 38,962	985,677 (2.10%)	1,299,697	1,442	275	1,166
W/O Interest Write-off	21,040 * -4,375	29,220 15,810	-8,566 -7,950	i,212,429 (2.41%)	1,583,409	1,773	241	1,532
W/O Depreciation Allowance	33,746 * -6,490	17,613 -288	15,785 6,132	2,100,881 (3.52%)	2,785,637	2,969	417	2,552
W/O Investment Tax Credit	19,785 * -12,744	751 -6,843	18,728 6,484	2,503,595 (3.92%)	3,462,008	3,650	448	3,201
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	31,703 * -11,509	2,236 -6,8389	29,140 7,730	2,563,783 (3.98%)	3,527,495	3,760	439	3,320
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealt	h 20,987 * -15,779	-712 -8,151	21,387 4,779	2,552,304 (3.97%)	3,515,538	3,730	441	3,288
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Incom	e 15,725 *-12,922		19,069 6,975	2,627,742 (4.04%)	3,662,202	3,832	457	3,375

Table 6. (Continued)

and the second restriction of the second res		PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
		INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTCAGED
				1979 г	ollars			Acres -	
MITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW									
ALUES IN YEAR 1		15,087	734	1,752	78,014	117,762	960	16	38
ncrease Over 30 Years									
Basic Comparison	*	4,185 581	-366 -483	4,298 13,721	345,634 (5.97%)	445,120	0 1	73	426
W/O Tax Indexing	*								
W/ Higher Consumption	*	3,085 2,832	-348 -394	2,499 17,643	56,529 (1.86%)	35,665	0	12	49
W/O Interest Write-off	*	2,616 853	920 135	1,421 13,347	309,140 (5.66%)	377,625	0	69	348
W/O Depreciation Allowance	*	5,979 1,708	757 -102	4,909 14,438	306,555 (5.66%)	378,374	0	70	353
W/O Investment Tax Credit	*	3,409 801	-203 -484	3,372 13,935	359,116 (6.09%)	460,551	1	80	429
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	*	1,826 -133	-466 -552	2,059 13,076	373,703 (6.18%)	485,673	1	80	460
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wes	alth *	3,750 375	-449 -501	3,909 13,537	352,755 (6.01%)	454,131	2	75	433
N/ Write-offs Truncated by Inc	come *	4,249 720	-377 -486	4,365 13,804	348,892 (6.01%)	448,532	0	75	428

Table 6. (Continued)

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGACED
			1979 D	ollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	19,001	992	5,408	65,587	65,587	960	0	0
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	176 -3,146	-655 -761	600 11,260	336,522 (6.48%)	468,666	0 .	85	440
W/O Tax Indexing								
W/ Higher Consumption *	-1,898 -2,216	-754 -817	402 15,452	35,127 (1.55%)	50,707	0	15	62
W/O Interest Write-off	466 -2,339	1,183 -102	-981 10,398	287,54 7 (5.98%)	395,168	0	75	365
W/O Depreciation Allowance	2,393 -2,199	107 -878	1,974 11,302	271,514 (5.84%)	365,273	0	71	343
W/O Investment Tax Credit	29 -2,901	-682 -998	457 10,739	338,986 (6.46%)	468,780	0	84	438
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM *	-335 -2,660	-678 -794	87 10,781	344,726 (6.53%)	477,961	0	84	447
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth *	972 -2,576	-700 -783	1,413 10,856	353,228 (6.61%)	493,519	2	82	466
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income *	1,022 -3,322	-789 -851	1,538 10,176	356,218 (6.58%)	502,101	1	86	475

Table 7. Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	PERSONAL INCOME	TAXES PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			- 1979 Dol	lars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	64,415 8,699	11,963 -2,214	50,677 22,606	2,666,213 (4.09%)	4,252,937	4,378	156	4,222
W/O Tax Indexing	58,718 8,826	234,056 51,785	-177,351 -31,538	52,928 (0.24%)	191,413	1,525	128	1,397
W/ Higher Consumption	24,287 3,407	3,777 -1,490	30,437 44,452	1,157,068 (2.37%)	1,782,188	1,886	210	1,676
W/O Interest Write-off	32,238 4,492	31,871 19,954	-1,561 -4,079	1,101,715	1,661,731	1,817	60	1,757
W/O Depreciation Allowance	51,295 8,852	25,343 5,385	24,072 14,514	1,920,997 (3.33%)	2,857,404	2,988	155	2,833
W/O Investment Tax Credit	63,249 4,861	16,258 -2,066	45,218 18,608	2,456,134 (3.89%)	3,851,403	4,003	148	3,855
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	58,639 5,320	10,107 -3,397	46,766 20,416	2,592,075 (4.01%)	4,070,421	4,214	148	4,066
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	57,197 5,101	11,361 -3,288	44,253 20,101	2,608,451 (4.03%)	4,144,784	4,298	153	4,145
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	59,986 4,463	11,346 -3,327	46,898 19,510	2,585,694 (4.00%)	4,108,152	4,260	137	4,123

Table 8. Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40 $\,$

	PERSONAL				OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS 1979 D	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	Acres -	MORTGAGE
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	21,150 * -13,299	290 -7,440	20,564 6,543	2,613,791 (4.03%)	3,631,043	3,815	439	3,376
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	12,485 * -5,645	1,161 -3,964	15,654 39,201	1,001,470 (2.13%)	1,318,191	1,458	280	1,178
W/O Interest Write-off	22,084 * -4,997	30,052 15,713	-8,367 -8,447	1,219,137	1,592,680	1,775	244	1,530
W/O Depreciation Allowance	29,794 * -8,538	15,766 -1,059	13,668 4,857	2,069,072 (3.48%)	2,726,802	2,907	403	2,503
W/O Investment Tax Credit	19,450 * -9,733	349 -5,815	18,790 8,470	2,497,843 (3.92%)	3,445,796	3,623	434	3,189
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	23,525 * -14,093	-1,260 -7,680	24,449 5,992	2,567,460 (3.98%)	3,533,881	3,745	438	3,307
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wes	* -12,463	681 -7,125	21,941 7,066	2,584,113 (4.00%)	3,570,716	3,786	435	3,351
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inc	* -13,449	-309 -7,421	25,046 6,378	2,618,498 (4.03%)	3,631,193	3,837	438	3,398

Table 9. Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OW NE D		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			- 1979 Dol	lars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								-
ALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	42,895 * -3,448	15,371 896	26,261 7,645	2,491,899 (3.92%)	4,526,474	4,941	-399	5,340
W/O Tax Indexing	55,961 * 12,326	225,852 67,071	-171,603 -43,053	-295,350 · (96%)	-100,330	1,842	60	1,782
W/ Higher Consumption	34,059 * 5,415	9,278 1,251	27,802 40,806	1,010,930 (2.15%)	1,657,333	1,815	29	1,786
W/O Interest Write-off	23,897 * -2,244	33,602 22,028	-11,250 -12,548	973,583 (2.05%)	1,669,336	1,942	-212	2,154
W/O Depreciation Allowance	51,971 * 3,111	29,672 7,986	20,813	1,914,761 (3.32%)	3,232,004	3,526	-257	3,783
W/O Investment Tax Credit	26,460 * -5,369	15,433 512	9,797 6,071	2,439,184 (3.88%)	4,283,767	4,648	-342	4,990
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	46,004 * -2,524	14,590 862	30,172 8,595	2,579,536 (4.01%)	4,677,770	5,033	-403	5,436
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wea	1th 54,238 * -8,257	17,975 -1,147	34,947 4,871	2,534,470 (3.95%)	4,442,709	4,861	-390	5,251
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inc	ome 31,263 *-9,589	14,416 -918	15,761 3.321	2,583,528 (4.00%)	4,634,400	5,079	-455	5,534

Table 9. (Continued)

	PERSONA	AL TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS .	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 Dol	llars			Acres -	
NIFIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	14,574	847	1,127	117,055	250,940	960	55	128
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	5,762 * -34	1,253 -123	3,734 12,480	650,224 (6.82%)	1,199,806	600	-55	1,432
W/O Tax Indexing	22,963 * 5,171	46,639 9,160	-25,025 8,303	214,215 (3.62%)	230,623	40	-34	603
W/ Higher Consumption	8,213 * 4,950	-138 -500	5,744 21,102	106,739	34,560	-1	-5	77
W/O Interest Write-off	4,764 * 1,501	3,599 2,002	399 11,837	324,152 (4.78%)	469,953	17	-55	699
W/O Depreciation Allowance	8,564 * 223	3,183 378	4,551 12,225	518,553 (6.06%)	891,234	300	-55	1,132
W/O Investment Tax Credit	4,906 * 160	1,460 -264	2,618 12,846	589,781 (6.60%)	1,066,998	471	-55	1,303
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	2,682 * 1,582	656 - 56	1,260 14,062	614,976 (6.63%)	1,149,597	565	-55 .	1,397
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealt	h 8,604 * 869	1,792 -117	6,015 13,390	641,041 (6.82%)	1,195,213	595	-55	1,427
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Incom	e 11,747 * 2,831	930 -169	10,026 15,345	633,599 (6.88%)	1,156,177	546	-55	1,378

Table 9. (Continued)

	PERSONAL INCOME	TAXES PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED .	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			- 1979 Dol				Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
JALUES IN YEAR 1	18,945	1,022	5,322	65,169	65,169	960	0	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	12,332 * -2,678	1,769 -418	9,618 10,152	574,338 (8.57%)	1,182,836	448	0	1,408
W/O Tax Indexing	13,417 * -458	37,396 7,621	-25,156 4,224	216,528 (5.29%)	352,674	24	0	984
W/ Higher Consumption	376 * -1,106	-593 -887	1,336 16,925	35,96 3 (1.24%)	72,200	0	13	133
W/O Interest Write-off	6,448 * -1,034	5,338 2,402	186 8,911	351,876 (6.93%)	621,765	10	0	970
W/O Depreciation Allo⊌ance	6,435 * -2,416	2,098 -226	3,525 10,219	435,659 (7.57%)	833,319	146	0	1,106
W/O Investment Tax Credit	3,795 * -3,024	1,338 -584	1,761 9,996	532,558 (8.30%)	1,086,696	351	0	1,311
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	4,761 * -3,077	1,318 -470	2,747 9,822	554,478 (8.39%)	1,132,946	415	0	1,375
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	th 9,034 * -4,404	1,844 -610	6,319 8,629	574,111 (8.37%)	1,142,250	423	0	1,383
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	ome 774 * -2,933	349 -573	-262 10,058	589,660 (8,49%)	1,184,091	431	0	1,391

Table 10. Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	PERSONAL				OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			1979 r	Oollars			Acres -	
NITLAL TENURE: FULL OWNER							•	
ALUES IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-461 * -25,458	3,533 -5,381	-4,225 -7,556	2,346,198 (3.77%)	3,421,897	3,750	-40	3,790
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	3,411 * -7,769	-176 -2,560	9,612 35,195	845,979 (1.87%)	1,154,840	1,307	156	1,151
W/O Interest Write-off	16,875 * -6,406	31,279 18,222	-14,724 -12,234	1,119,040 (2.28%)	1,553,599	1,784	8	1,776
W/O Depreciation Allowance	19,925 * -11,351	16,295 1,461	3,367 -318	1,961,155 (3.37%)	2,791,422	3,038	26	3,011
· W/O Investment Tax Credit	7,482 * -22,244	5,413 -4,467	1,817 -5,250	2,273,244 (3.71%)	3,368,675	3,669	-7	3,676
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	13,893 * -20,758	6,308 -3,923	7,353 -4,316	2,412,752 (3.84%)	3,515,098	3,885	11	3,873
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	18,429 * -23,202	5,790 -4,923	12,395 -5,753	2,430,540 (3.85%)	3,575,080	3,884	-26	3,910
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	me -4,593 * -22,744	3,090 -4,579	-7,898 -5,646	2,417,041 (3.84%)	3,545,527	3,877	8	3,869

Table 10. (Continued)

	PERSONAL	TAXES	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FUI.L-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			· 19/9 [Dollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENUKE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	15,087	734	1,752	78,014	117,762	960	16	38
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-70 -1,716	-9 -590	-263 11,560	446,698 (7.00%)	656,276	78	-16	767
W/O Tax Indexing							, 	
W/ Higher Consumption	997 k 1,237	-608 -678	1,859 18,265	17,832 (0.19%)	-10,426	0	9	42
W/O Interest Write-off	2,371 631	1,667 619	500 12,680	273,320 (5.55%)	358,511	0	-12	442
W/O Depreciation Allowance	2,585 -701	690 - 385	1,698 12,359	303,300 (5.83%)	412,841	9	-12	510
W/O Investment Tax Credit	1,238 -2,205	-500 -807	1,531 11,294	377,148 (6.44%)	541,041	31	-14	637
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	2,939 -1,637	-83 -522	2,818 11,581	425,432 (6.71%)	618,375	82	-16	775
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	3,987 -1,118	203 -536	3,578 12,107	428,255 (6.81%)	626,094	81	-16	786
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	-3,158 -3,648	-252 -725	-3,071 9,766	434,330 (6.71%)	633,132	81	-16	780

Table 10. (Continued)

	PERSONAL INCOME	. TAXES	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
				ollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
ALUES IN YEAR !	19,001	992	5,408	65,587	65,587	960	0	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-3,776 * -6,391	-576 -1,000	-3,388 7,289	431,448 (7.44 %)	668,411	66	0	772
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	-2,127 -1,958	-900 -1,045	275 16,693	5,568 (-0.05%)	13,233	0	13	57
U/O Interest Write-off	1,945 * -2,145	2,549 764	-842 9,744	293,067 (6.43%)	424,116	0	0	495
W/O Depreciation Allowance	-4,252 * -3,943	-78 -950	-4,370 9,663	303,957 (6.20%)	456,507	14	, 7	529
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-3,910 * -5,080	-489 -962	-3,612 8,575	345,160 (6.85%)	534,895	24	0	646
.W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	-2,679 * -4,231	-343 -783	-2,510 9,245	368,978 (7.02%)	575,132	43	0	683
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	1,611 * -4,078	-495 -713	1,873 9,323	380,599 (7.24%)	586,526	48	0	693
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	-1,319 * -4,570	-261 -770	-1,264 8,886	372,965 (7.24%)	578,820	37	0	693

Table 11. Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

_	PERSONAL	TAXES			OW NE D		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 1	Oollars			Acres -	
NICIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	47,693 * -892	17,263 1,354	29,232 9,725	2,551,363 (3.98%)	4,620,413	5,011	-374	5,385
W/O Tax Indexing	61,002 * 10,564	239,014 62,917	100,398 -40,643	-163,824 (-0.42%)	56,797	1,909	32	1,877
W/ Higher Consumption	23,158 * 573	7,024 37	22,731 39,701	1,001,105	1,654,059	1,821	39	1,782
W/O Interest Write-off	24,383 * 3,286	33,021 23,281	-10,118 -8,253	968,889 (2.05%)	1,668,840	1,936	-226	2,162
W/O Depreciation Allowance	41,471 * 3,769	25,991 8,107	14,176 7,520	1,989,502 (3.40%)	3,384,713	3,637	-216	3,853
W/O Investment Tax Credit	45,019 * 3,856	17,956 3,394	25,767 12,408	2,471,556 (3,90%)	4,406,348	4,747	-294	5,401
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	60,303 * -4,564	20,448 -141	38,507 7,57i	2,457,538 (3.88%)	4,432,778	4,798	-418	5,216
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wea	1ch 39,437 * -7,340	13,009 -919	25,198 5,579	2,438,893 (3.85%)	4,358,002	4,839	-378	5,217
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	ome 43,383	18,580 871	23,601 6,539	2,546,844 (3,98%)	4,617,791	5,029	-460	5,489

Table 11. (Continued)

	PERSONAL		CANTHE	NEW HORE	OW NE D	0000400	FARM SIZE	MODERALOS
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	14,574	874	1,127	117,055	250,940	960	55	128
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	16,933	2,241	13,735	680,540	1,207,078	627	-55	1,459
•	* -12	-162	12,545	(6.88%)				
W/O Tax Indexing	25,290	51,544	-27,514	260,055	288,885	31	1	601
•	8,136	10,123	10,282	(4.18%)	·			
W/ Higher Consumption	7,349	100	3,901	120,243	63,530	-1	-2	147
	2,597	-516	19,173	(2.31%)	-			
W/O Interest Write-off	12,989	6,329	5,623	395,005	560,075	27	-55	735
•	4,215	2,913	13,580	(5.32%)	·			
W/O Depreciation Allowance	12,267	3,988	7,366	523,031	877,988	303	-55	1,097
	791	507	12,659	(5.95%)				
W/O Investment Tax Credit	10,633	1,674	8,095	679,490	1,175,388	585	-55	1,417
•	689	-74	13,168	(6.78%)				
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	20,919	3,181	16,836	723,832	1,340,479	755	-55	1,587
•	2,466	241	14,619	(7.08%)				
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	8,834	1,276	6,742	694,313	1,295,545	667	-55	1,499
	<u>*</u> 19	-50	12,490	(6.89%)				
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	12,429	1,931	9,628	726,044	1,332,227	738	-55	1,570
· •	928	126	13,198	(7.05%)				-

Table 11. (Continued)

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	DAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			1979 [Oollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
ALUES IN YEAR I	18,945	1,022	5,322	65,169	65,169	960	n	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-27,124 * -9,002		-26,403 4,310	942,587 (9.62%)	1,880,283	1,099	0	2,059
W/O Tax Indexing	18,982 * 2,923	40,164 8,069	-22,414 7,083	419,669 (7.19%)	611,647	23	44	787
W/ Higher Consumption	2,834 * -247	-650 -883	3,326 18,123	97,025 (3.34%)	154,759	0	26	196
W/O Interest Write-off	3,217 * -2,809	3,717 2,564	-1,354 6,958	416,128 (7.11%)	697,492	35	0	995
W/O Depreciation Allowance	9,894 * 2,243	4,959 624	4,042 13,978	512,765 (8.00%)	978,591	231	0	1,191
W/O Investment Tax Credit	17,254 * -2,942	1,966 1,013	14,643 10,472	706,014 (8.70%)	1,298,104	631	0	1,591
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	20,447 * -607	4,047 -4	15,415 11,865	572,932 (8.43%)	1,136,467	466	0	1,426
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	18,307 * -704	1,531 -673	16,040 12,327	834,486 (9.48%)	1,577,719	813	0	1,773
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	22,972 * -1,756	1,022 -744	20,794 11,323	779,612 (9.06%)	1,423,500	623	0	1,583

Table 12. Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 1	Oollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	. 0
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-14,888 * -25,820	1,684 -5,212	-16,792 -8,082	2,387,789 (3.82%)	3,597,089	3,911	-34	3,945
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	19,101 * -4,605	7,036 -1,517	11,422 37,011	896,805 (1.95%)	1,233,737	1,405	172	1,233
W/O Interest Write-off	11,329 * -6,808	30,101 18,143	-19,054 -12,548	1,112,091 (2.27%)	1,563,922	1,788	1	1,787
W/O Depreciation Allowance	2,804 * -17,187	10,588 -455	-8,031 -4,252	2,032,832 (3.45%)	2,877,643	3,110	50	3,060
W/O Investment Tax Credit	13,752 * -18,723	6,278 -3,047	7,229 -3,165	2,284,009 (3.70%)	3,350,021	3,667	-14	3,681
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	9,427 * -17,789	7,554 -3,391	1,654 -1,878	2,546,901 (3.97%)	3,773,522	4,142	52	4,089
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	th -20,598 * -25,531		-18,373 -7,822	2,417,784 (3.83%)	3,576,525	3,884	8	3,876
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Incom	ne 1,086 * -24,153	5,033 -5,124	-4,167 -6,499	2,391,990 (3.82%)	3,563,446	3,865	-24	3,889

Table 12. (Continued)

	PERSONAL				OMNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	Acres -	MORTCACEL
			1979 1	ollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	15,087	734	1,752	78,014	117,762	960	16	38
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-1,538	-412 -484	-1,316	444,447 (6.87%)	672,418	68	1	751
•	-1,322	-464	11,858	(0.0/%)				
W/O Tax Indexing								
*								
W/ Higher Consumption	3,240	-441	2,399	55,946	32,389	0	14	65
*	•	-734	17,187	(1.76%)		-		
W/O Interest Write-off	3,959	3,542	190	343,616	460,361	2	6	522
*	629	1,245	12,027	(6.08%)				
W/O Depreciation Allowance	7,335	1,617	5,504	426,731	591,759	32	3	671
	-2,248	-414	10,816	(6.63%)	,			
W/O Investment Tax Credit	6,218	497	5,524	470,524	681,977	97	0	779
*	-1,601	-529	11,612	(6.94%)				
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	-5,140	-664	-4,632	473,807	688,504	71	-2	774
	-3,636	-764	9,804	(6.97%)	٠,			
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	4,863	860	3,771	482,265	681,238	84	-4	802
*	-4,916	-692	8,458	(6.95%)				
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	-3,084	-400	-2,877	504,793	733,990	111	1	836
*	-2.937	-689	10,436	(7, 17%)	-			

Table 12. (Continued)

		PERSONAL				OMNED		FARN SIZE	
		INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS 1979 D	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGEI
ENITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER									
VALUES IN YEAR 1		19,001	992	5,408	65,587	65,587	960	0	0
Increase Over 30 Years						•			
Basic Comparison	*	-3,060 -4,653	-136 -720	-3,095 8,722	550,452 (8.14%)	821,138	127	24	895
W/O Tax Indexing	*								
W/ Higher Consumption	*	47 -4,217	-763 -1,285	1,262 15,988	55,009 (2.14%)	71,098	0	24	99
W/O Interest Write-off	*	5,688 -3,818	3,838 884	1,587 7,938	347,190 (6.65%)	488,031	o ·	23	546
W/O Depreciation Allowance	*	-2,927 -1,882	367 -640	-3,479 11,385	392,404 · (7.17%)	581,932	10	38	617
W/O Investment Tax Credit	*	-8,445 -5,533	-886 -1,103	-7,709 8,241	461,607 (7.58%)	709,810	68	15	783
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	*	-4,695 -5,454	-559 -877	-4,290 8,088	510,272 (7.88%)	779,955	67	12	854
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	th . *	-3,831 -6,082	-460 -953	-3,562 7,540	450,115 (7.47%)	691,806	60	5	782
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco		-3,909 -7,056	-637 -1,099	-3,443 6,719	454,732 (7.39%)	703,271	67	2	794

Table 13. Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	PERSONAL INCOME	TAX ES PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 D	ollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	O
Acrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	36,121 * -2,671	14,187 -190	20,650 9,469	2,564,115 (3.97%)	4,777,129	5,087	-221	5,308
W/O Tax Indexing	82,421 * 8,543	279,745 46,061	-199,301 -25,703	188,527	454,535	1,871	-32	1,903
W/ Higher Consumption	17,238 * -2,718	6,027 -892	20,401 39,052	1,020,660 (2.15%)	1,675,197	1,836	33	1,803
W/O Interest Write-offs	25,797 * 434	33,912 22,640	-9,661 -10,462	962,740 (2.04%)	1,645,717	1,919	-232	2,151
W/O Depreciation Allowance	23,200 * 287	21,047 7,277	978 4,919	1,893,755 (3.29%)	3,245,667	3,526	-281	3,807
W/O Investment Tax Credit	11,273 * -4,082	10,397 25	-131 7,159	2,282,632 (3.72%)	4,267,031	4,586	-309	4,895
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	57,361 * -4:648	14,688 -955	41,241 8,293	2,473,586 (3.90%)	4,454,497	4,828	-308	5,136
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wea	1th 32,372 * -7,331	13,482 1,378	17,638 6,014	2,381,967 (3.79%)	4,355,117	4,782	-297	5,079
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inc	ome 34,399 * -3,611	14,787 -544	18,476 8,901	2,570,439 (3.98%)	4,598,448	4,952	-300	5,252

Table 14. Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	PERSONAL				OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS 1979 D	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
							•	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0
ocrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	18,807	6,763	11,802	2,310,447	3,441,270	3,763	-43	3,805
,	* -18,366	-2,895	-2,942	(3.76%)				
W/O Tax Indexing								
	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	6,878	1,688	9,717	850,564	1,161,521	1,326	158	1,168
	* -6,336	-1,764	35,553	(1.87%)				-
W/O Interest Write-off	-1,611	25,654	-27,540	1,112,184	1,577,792	1,801	5	1,795
	* -11,435	16,655	-15,688	(2.26%)				
W/O Depreciation Allowance	14,141		-99	1,981,849	2,816,895	3,062	25	3,036
	* -17,770	-339	-4,933	(3.39%)				
W/O Investment Tax Credit	23,848	9,733	13,852	2,386,816	3,481,057	3,820	36	3,783
	* -14 ,781	-2,371	102	(3.82%)				
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	325	2,175	-2,072	2,471,611	3,639,040	3,971	-11	3,981
*	* -24,676	-5,373	-6,779	(3.89%)	•			
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealt		-609	-7,170	2,504,886	3,710,909	4,021	3	4,017
	* -23,756	-5,027	-6,204	(3.92%)				
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Incom	ie -1,868	1,664	-3,748	2,493,087	3,714,256	4,005	30	3,974
•	* -21,492	-4,777	-4,188	(3.91%)				

Table 15. Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OW NE D		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 D	ollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	35,192 * -7,534	28,294 8,764	5,838 -4,217	2,426,679 (3.85%)	5,137,886	6,074	-85 7	6,931
W/O Tax Indexing	77,847 * 12,604	296,626 78,067	-220,542 -53,629	-768,240 (-3,47%)	-553,053	1,968	ì	1,967
W/ Higher Consumption	30,238 * 1,610	12,737. 2,954	17,762 36,872	1,282,270 (1.63%)	1,282,270	1,612	-82	1,694
W/O Interest Write-off	18,671 * -5,765	35,664 27,269	-18,255 -21,137	783,878 (1.74%)	1,549,748	2,067	-462	2,529
W/O Depreciation Allowance	62,156 * -1,750	47,621 15,860	13,392 -5,585	1,860,990 (3.27%)	3,687,949	4,463	-703	5,166
W/O Investment Tax Credit	33,037 * -19,263	33,801 5,814	-1,935 -12,989	1,975,329 (3.38%)	4,099,541	5,142	-839	5,981
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	59,832 * -12,876	32,451 7,060	26,285 -7,834	2,340,333 (3.73%)	4,934,043	5,818	-960	6,778
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wea	1th 5,702 * -20,011	16,858 5,382	-12,178 -13,300	2,199,977 (3.61%)	4,685,005	5,590	-906	6,496
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	ome 32,983	23,828	7,976	1,996,878	4,256,475	5,102	-960	6,062

Table 15. (Continued)

	PERSONAL				OW NE D		FARM SIZE	
•	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS 1979 I	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			1979 1	Dortars			Actes	
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	14,574	847	1,127	117,055	250,940	960	55	128
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	4,945	4,090	45	687,738	1,524,331	1,178	-55	2,010
	* -6,831	1,119	4,420	(7.38%)				•
W/O fax Indexing	33,974	71,435	-38,977	86,995	128,046	130	-51	777
_	* 5,369	15,287	2,318	(1.81%)				
W/ Higher Consumption	14,817	858	8,275	74,372	31,176	-1	-26	210
•	* 5,382	-202	22,110	(1.08%)		,		
W/O Interest Write-off	10,077	8,148	982	308,317	529,475	87	-55	. 919
	* - 670	4,110	7,531	(5.00%)				
W/O Depreciation Allowance	1,287	5,555	-5,119	549,024	1,116,468	653	-55	1,485
	* -2,160	1,678	8,489	(6.77%)				
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-1,887	2,854	-5,460	671,515	1,490,577	1,052	-55	1,884
•	* -2,492	1,013	8,828	(7.43%)				
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	9,228	5,297	2,993	699,196	1,537,240	1,133	-55	1,965
•	* -5,437	909	6,006	(7.55%)				
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	lth 11,465	6,104	4,471	861,041	1,840,634	1,415	-55	2,247
.,	* -608	1,468	10,241	(8.30%)		•		•
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	ome 3,349	4,100	-1,586	740,973	1,661,627	1,203	-55	2,035
., 	* -1,775	1,590	8,983	(7.79%)		•		· ·

Table 15. (Continued)

			•					
	PERSON/ INCOME	AL TAXES PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			1979	Dollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	18,945	1,022	5,322	65,169	65,169	960	0	0
ocrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	939 * -4,696		-5,257 6,582	777,695 (10.41%)	1,841,855	1,215	O	2,175
W/O Tax Indexing	20,947 * -2,150	•	-45,725 -3,775	104,250 (3.93%)	274,695	97	0	1,057
W/ Higher Consumption	4,888 * 371		2,905 18,005	61,486 (2.35%)	141,512	0	. 0	256
W/O Interest Write-off	7,371 * -5,888		-3,125 2,126	325,759 (7.31%)	687,959	60	0	1,020
W/O Depreciation Allowance	-11,198 * -6,156		-15,973 5,080	529,538 (8.86%)	1,227,864	597	0	1,557
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-2,699 * -6,904		-7,252 4,625	712,920 (9.97%)	1,632,212	1,069	0	2,029
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	8,198 * -5,854		2,631 5,867	601,595 (9.84%)	1,453,530	872	O	1,832
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealti	i 3,892 ≯ -6,530	•	-2,687 4,950	750,702 (10.34%)	1,735,573	1,153	O	2,113
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	e 8,26°		2,349 6,272	759,853 (10,36%)	1,738,941	1,115	0	2,075

Table 16. Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	PERSONAL				OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	1979 D	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			- 1979 1	ollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR I	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0.
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-5,425 * -30,299	9,727 -1,581	-15,378 -16,153	2,226,203 (3.66%)	3,491,890	4,028	-394	4,421
W/O Tax Indexing	*				, -			
W/ Higher Consumption	3,807 * -11,648	4,684 -1,351	-119 31,111.	616,057 (1.43%)	874,252	1,122	21	1,101
W/O Interest Write-off	-19,419 * -18,481		-42,739 -25,021	912,815 ' (1.96%)	1,421,525	1,778	-263	2,041
W/O Depreciation Allowance	18,002 * -29,310	26,561 1,256	-8,827 -18,023	1,947,653 (3.35%)	2,924,498	3,438	-313	3,750
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-9,809 * -28,828	8,710 266	-18,746 -16,536	2,151,630 (3.57%)	3,345,499	3,854	-383	4,237
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	945 - * -28,104	9,596 -137	-8,876 -15,410	2,148,825 (3.58%)	3,353,326	3,897	-370	4,266
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	th -15,589 * -38,521	7,384 -2,637	-23,184 -23,317	2,202,392 (3.63%)	3,433,773	4,022	-361	4,383
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	one -24,854 * -29,115	12,756 29	-37,805 -16,570	2,302,124 (3.72%)	3,633,588	4,165	-395	4,559

Table 16. (Continued)

	PERSONA			,	OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGEL
			19/9 [ollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TEMURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	15,087	734	1,752	78,014	117,762	960	16	38
Increase Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-3,216 * -5,102	809 -295	-4,206 7,891	474,404 (7.90%)	780,454	206	-16	1,055
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	5,240 * 1,562	-398 -814	3,845 20,215	14,506 (0.48%)	-14,642	0 .	8	75
W/O Interest Write-off	6,104 * -1,929	5,212 · 1,487	665 9,244	287,585 · (6.29%)	407,333	5	0	624
W/O Depreciation Allowance	6,024 * -5,774	2,866 -477	2,923 7,379	· 380,531 (7.12%)	563,376	66	-16	809
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-8,309 * -6,951	833 -709	-9,285 6,451	496,476 (7.93%)	792,592	215	-16	1,070
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	-1,954 * -8,764	980 -674	-3,133 4,592	498,920 (7.70%)	783,352	217	-16	1,075
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	-3,303 * -5,250	755 -342	-4,246 7,791	445,096 (8.03%)	739,872	142	-16	1,046
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	2,577 * -7,610	1,123 -467	1,254 5,538	545,227 (8.23%)	868,933	300	-16	1,168

Table 16. (Continued)

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
•	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTCAGEI
•			1979 I	ollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	19,001	992	5,408	65,587	65,587	960	0	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	-8,865 * -9,609	360 -742	-9,417 3,817	437,753 (8.50%)	737,012	136	0	1,035
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	3,600 * -4,555	-346 -1,633	1,797 17,392	22,427 (1.04%)	40,292	0	18	113
W/O Interest Write-off	-1,313 * -6,632	4,734 2,209	-6,257 3,809	329,421 (7.37%)	522,274	14	0	729
W/O Depreciation Allowance	-8,643 * -8,322	224 -1,100	-9,035 5,444	356,004 (7.48%)	589,569	68	0	796
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-7,091 * -8,067	563 -727	-7,809 5,336	489,527 (8.72%)	823,584	204	0	1,077
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	-11,041 * -11,533	-152 -1,055	-11,074 2,215	553,631 (8.43%)	815,184	204	0	1,085
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wea	1th -7,868 * -6,951	196 -605	-8,231 6,341	430,605 (8.30%)	724,855	153	0	985
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inc	ome -6,574 * -9,760	324 -777	-7,072 3,704	490,520 (8.59%)	824,399	238	0	1,087

Table 17. Results of Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	PERSONAL		0.447400	VIII LIONETT	OW NE D	00004700	FARM SIZE	VODTOLCT
	INCOME	PAID	1979 D	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			.,,,					
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	13,014	17,545	-5,594	1,118,357	4,346,388	5,368	-729	6,097
	* -11,981	6,870	-6,748	(3.42%)				
W/O Tax Indexing	49,545	226,352	-178,259	-232,825	58,009	2,144	-61	2,205
	* 11,467	62,924	-39,611	(-0.65%)	-			•
W/ Higher Consumption	16,269	7,994	13,222	749,431	1,367,194	1,733	-93	1,826
,	* -14,517	-1,877	32,894	(1.67%)				
W/O Interest Write-off	19,013	35,904	-18,307	675,934	1,420,817	1,995	-552	2,547
	* -12,159	25,500	-25,734	(1.54%)				•
W/O Depreciation Allowance	59,955	41,879	16,767	1,879,574	3,600,327	4,378	-634	5,012
•	* -3,457	13,429	-4,890	(3.28%)	, ,	,•		·
W/O Investment Tax Credit	58,533	32,512	24,825	2,211,484	4,702,749	5,480	-914	6,394
	* -12,249	7,505	-7,667	(3.63%)		•		•
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	17,515	25,235	-8,831	2,120,693	4,546,725	5,491	-859	6,350
	* -11 ,701	7,781	-7,386	(3.54%)		·		
W/ Write-offs Truncated to Wea	ilth 65,863	40,396	24,214	2,198,972	4,795,437	5,677	- 954	6,631
	* -13,548	8,101	-9,561	(3.65%)	• •	·		•
W/ Write-offs Truncated to Inc	ome 42,843	29,398	12,255	2,357,805	4,097,278	5,878	-960	6,838
	* -20.99 0	5.603	-14.526	(3.82%)		•		•

Table 17. (Continued)

	PERSONA	L TAKES			OW NE D		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979	Dollars			Acres -	
INITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	14,574	847	1,127	117,055	250,940	960	55	128
Increase Over 30 Years								
Ensic Comparison	8,123 * -12,521		9,142 130	1,256,512 (8.71%)	2,967,529	2,159	-55	2,991
W/O Tax Indexing	54,842 * 19,889		-1,702 4,957	360,983 (5.54%)	505,094	479	-40	1,279
W/ Higher Consumption	# 2,545		9,176 20,572	176,189 (3.19%)	150,862	-1	-15	310
W/O Interest Write-off	31,939 * 969		9,777 6,649	511,232 (5.91%)	837,729	287	-55	, 1,119
W/O Depreciation Allowance	28,553 * 691	13,415 2,259	13,929 10,759	810,175 (7.29%)	1,594,967	1,119	-55	1,951
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-19,099 * 20,926	•	-28,078 27,050	1,688,903 (10.19%)	3,534,632	2,799	-55	3,631
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	64,357 * -4,263		49,880 1,743	857,068 (7.68%)	1,142,774	819	-55	1,651
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wea	lth 117,862 * 5,153		86,425 14,927	1,271,977 (9.24%)	2,359,271	2,239	-55	3,071
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	ome -12,379 * 3,667		-13,205 13,998	1,212,984 (8,91%)	2,348,284	1,779	-55	2,611

Table 17. (Continued)

	PERSONAL INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			1979 [Dollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
ALUES IN YEAR I	18,945	1,022	5,322	65,169	65,169	960	0	. 0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison								
W/O Tax Indexing							 	
W/ Higher Consumption	-4,377 5,390	-1,420 -97	-702 22,378	173,021 (5.03%)	355,166	0	0	460
W/O Interest Write-off	-21,135 3,179	-1,287 5,944	-19,847 9,452	514,511 (8.00%)	815,081	179	13	986
W/O Depreciation Allowance								
W/O Investment Tax Credit			****					
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M								
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth								
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income								

Table 18. Results of Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	PERSONAL		0.447.4400	NEW CORMIT	OWNED	00004550	FARM SIZE	VODBOLOTO
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979	Ottats		•	Acres	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER			•					
VALUES IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0 .
Increase Over 30 Years				•				
Basic Comparison	-15,958 * -35,018		-26,354 -19,820	2,142,969 (3.56%)	3,345,153	3,906	-376	4,281
W/O Tax Indexing	*				-			
W/ Higher Consumption	13,800 * -10,378	6,035 -2,124	7,427 33,890	649,867 (1.49%)	911,910	1,161	24	176
W/O Interest Write-off	6,862 * -10,723	31,918 20,817	-25,318 -19,053	948,711	1,444,655	1,775	-273	2,047
W/O Depreciation Allowance	11,836 * -22,252	20,991 3,353	-9,406 -13,059	1,841,130 (3.25%)	2,827,575	3,259	-343	3,602
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-26,334 * -31,310	7,615 -1,345	-34,162 -17,400	2,274,316 (3.70%)	3,628,095	4,090	-903	4,476
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	15,598 * -27 ,959	15,651 330	-297 -15,719	2,024,850 (3.48%)	3,152,033	3,736	-424	4,160
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	th -6,619 * -29,223	10,821 -1,381	-17,659 -15,286	2,237,693 (3.64%)	3,533,184	4,063	-347	4,410
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Incom	me -14,857 * -26,624	13,666 -352	-28,728 -15,702	2,189,920 (3,63%)	3,494,312	4,035	-388	4,423

Table 18. (Continued)

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			1979 I	ollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	15,087	734	1,752	78,014	117,762	960	16	38
ncrease Over 30 Years							,	
Basic Comparison	-15,234 * -8,578	-223 -391	-15,163 4,463	800,791 (8.69%)	1,245,684	524	-16	1,461
W/O Tax Indexing	*							
W/ Higher Consumption	2,739 * -1,222	-376 -1,115	1,612 18,763	82,795 (2.64%)	66,522	0	17	134
W/O Interest Write-off	9,936 * -7,963	6,956 1,786	2,742 2,848	436,792 (6.58%)	600,706	19	-16	754
W/O Depreciation Allowance	-350 * -8,758	2,688 -1,159	-3,242 5,019	698,904 (8.01%)	1,043,913	315	-16	1,167
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-9,132 * -5,182	2,136 37	-11,427 7,416	874,324 (9.00%)	1,315,121	649	-16	1,534
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	-50,173 * -15,228	-1,230 -749	-48,971 -1,817	643,118 (8.00%)	1,077,882	383	-16	1,359
W/ Write-offs Trancated by Wes	11th -14,643 * -11,342	2,049 -287	-16,840 1,627	526,395 (7.43%)	873,211	214	-16	1,174
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inc	eome -20,262 * -11,503	410 -1,020	-20,835 2,195	633,904 (7.91%)	961,543	298	-16	1,224

Table 18. (Continued)

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
<u>'</u>	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
•			1979 D	ollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER								
VALUES IN YEAR 1	19,001	992	5,408	65,587	65,587	960	0	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
	50,368 14,012	6,489 -752	43,471 -632	626,354 (8.73%)	884,089	306	. * • 0	1,266
W/O Tax Indexing -				***				
W/ Higher Consumption *	1,317 -9,864	-298 -2,562	1,989 16,484	135,216	188,407	0	27	232
	-4,122 -1,526	7,123 -2,916	-11,475 8,181	462,628 (7.29%)	615,142	16	0	738
W/O Depreciation Allowance	-6,040 -921	1,395 821	-7,612 10,906	600,863 (8.87%)	931,328	250	0	1,097
·	·15,321 ·12,473	-638 -701	-14,819 860	672,636 (8.97%)	1,056,496	336	0	1,296
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·15,496 ·16,641	-1,283 -1,477	-14,383 -2,491	681,365 (9.04%)	1,143,131	417	0	1,377
	36,194 -1,072	8,134 254	27,788 11,338	748,712 (9.86%)	1,163,445	433	0	1,399
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income * -	454 12,718	-453 -1,281	767 1,233	625,156 (8.47%)	971,210	239	o	1,199

Table 19. Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	PERSONAL	TAXES			OWNED		FARM SIZE	
	INCOME	PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	ASSETS	OPERATED	FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGED
			1979 I	ollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER							•	
ALUES IN YEAR 1	62,859	12,703	37,556	1,091,647	1,091,647	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison			-					
	*							,
W/O Tax Indexing								
•	*						****	
W/ Higher Consumption	19,939	8,896	14,392	788,784	1,440,756	1,747	-96	1,843
	* 540	2,642	32,281	(1.74%)		1		
W/O Interest Write-off	27,468	43,723	-17,628	800,593	1,669,189	2,142	-488	2,630
	* -2,772	27,680	-18,555	(1.77%)			,	
W/O Depreciation Allowance	-59,565	12,710	-73,374	1,733,046	3,337,021	3,810	-344	4,154
	* -1,487	7,165	3,341	(3.06%)				
W/O Investment Tax Credit	-67,736	•	-53,404	2,316,848	5,216,507	5,279	-551	5,830
	* -34,497	-4,977	-17,483	(3.72%)				
W/ Write-offs Limited to lM	-17,561	72,734	-91,302	2,754,440	6,162,611	7,059	· -268	7,327
	* 24,444	11,456	25,007	(4.26%)				
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal		3,110	56,835	2,086,450	4,197,808	4,319	-486	4,805
	* -830	699	10,381	(3.62%)				
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco			218,907	2,733,933	5,301,532	6,559	-672	7,231
	* -54,129	-19,476	-22,654	(4.09%)				

Table 20. Results of Full Owner Simulation Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	PERSONAL INCOME	TAXES PAID	SAVINGS	NET WORTH	OWNED ASSETS	OPERATED	FARM SIZE FULL-EQUITY	MORTGAGE
			1979 D	Oollars			Acres -	
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER								
ALUES IN YEAR 1	63,490	12,893	37,996	1,215,629	1,215,629	960	960	0
ncrease Over 30 Years								
Basic Comparison	11,513 * -33,698	15,083 -2,228	-3,797 -18,898	2,215,260 (3.64%)	3,460,798	3,986	-436	4,422
W/O Tax Indexing	*							***
W/ Higher Consumption	14,118 * -4,064	5,741 -255	6,862 34,134	607,086 (1.41%)	873,247	1,132	34	1,098
W/O Interest Write-off	4,487 * -12,621		-26,890 -20,094	921,724 (1.98%)	1,413,256	1,768	-263	2,031
W/O Depreciation Allowance	12,046 * -19,403	22,645 3,619	-10,854 -10,487	1,906,740 (3.31%)	2,918,918	3,386	-298	3,683
W/O Investment Tax Credit	14,359 * -32,254		-5,889 -17,719	2,044,935 (3.45%)	3,154,622	3,700	-378	4,077
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	6,304 * -28,027	9,302 -1,009	-3,207 -14,452	2,161,107 (3.59%)	3,368,117	3,879	-362	4,241
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Weal	th -13,650 * -29,512		-24,094 -15,890	2,157,603 (3.58%)	3,359,480	3,870	-369	4,239
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Inco	* -22,466 * -36,084	9,612 -2,722	-32,278 -20,792	2,278,898 (3.63%)	3,600,644	4,129	-347	4,475

Table 21. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	. 0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	0	0
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
INITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	0	0
W/ Higher Consumption	. 0	0	0	0 .
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0 .	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
INITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	0	0
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0

Table 22. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	Ö	Ō	100	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	Ō	Ö	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	Ó	Ö
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	Õ	Ô	100	100
W/ Higher Consumption	Ö	Ô	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	Ŏ.	∞ 0	Ŏ ··	Ö
W/O Depreciation Allowance	Ö	0	Ō	Ö
W/O Investment Tax Credit	Ö	0	0	, <u>0</u>
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	100	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	. 0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	. 0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0

Table 23. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	0	0
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	. 0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	. 0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0 .	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	. 0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0 .	0	0	0
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	O	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0 .	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER	•			
Basic Comparison	14	2	0	16
W/O Tax Indexing	11	0	0	11
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	1	1
W/O Interest Write-off	11	0	0	11
W/O Depreciation Allowance	6	0	0	6
W/O Investment Tax Credit	8	1	0	9
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	9	2	0	11
W/Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	14	0	O	14
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	14	0	0	14

Table 24. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	20	80	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	Ö
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	C
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0.	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	O.	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	3	97	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	C
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	1	0	0	1
W/O Tax Indexing	2	1	97	100
W/ Higher Consumption	1	6	7	14
W/O Interest Write-off	1	0	0	1
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	2	0	0	2
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	1	0	0	1
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	1	0	0	1
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	2	0	0	2

Table 25. Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
ITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	o	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	72	72
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	. 0	O
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0

Table 26. Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .25 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
TIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	85	15	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	.0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	. 0

Table 27. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
NITIAL TENURE: FULL CHNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	Ō	0	0	0
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	G	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	Ú	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	Ġ
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
HITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	0	0
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	1	O ·	0	1
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0.
ITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	2	2
W/ Higher Consumption	0	5	15	20
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	i	1
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	O	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0

Table 28. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	16	84	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	G	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	O,	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	21	79	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	3	4	7
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	c	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	1	0	1
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	0	1	0	1
W/O Tax Indexing	0	21	79	100
W/ Higher Consumption	2	8	15	25
W/O Interest Write-off	0	1	0	1
W/O Depreciation Allowance	1	0	0	1
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	1	0	- 1
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	1	0	1
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	1	0	0	1

Table 29. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER			•	
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	26	26
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	. 0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	o	0	0 ,
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	45	7	1	53
W/O Tax Indexing	44	6	4	54
W/ Higher Consumption	6	0	Ó	6
W/O Interest Write-off	36	4	1	41
W/O Depreciation Allowance	44	4	0	48
W/O Investment Tax Credit	49	8	0	57
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	52	10	ı	63
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	50	5	1	56
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	46	16	0	62
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	91	4	1 ,	96
W/O Tax Indexing	91	4	0	95
W/ Consumption	53	25	3	81
W/O Interest Write-off	89	1	0	90
W/O Depreciation Allowance	84	7	0	91
W/O Investment Tax Credit	94	1	0	95
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	91	3	0	94
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	85	8	1	94
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	90	5	0	95

Table 30. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/# Tax Indexing	0	49	51	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O interest Write-off	0	0	0	Ü
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	C
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	C	0	. 0	0
W/ Write-ofts Truncated by Wealth	0	G	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	. 0	0	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	38	5	0	43
W/O Tax Indexing	40	24	36	100
W/ Higher Consumption	29	6	6	41
W/O Interest Write-off	50	2	0	52
W/O Depreciation Allowance	45	8	0	53
W/O Investment Tax Credit	40	. 3	0	43
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	44	2	0	46
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	42	6 -	O	48
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	40	4	0	44
INITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	68	5	0	73
W/O Tax Indexing	64	13	23	100
W/ Higher Consumption	57	19	2	78
W/O Interest Write-off	55	3	0	58
W/O Depreciation Allowance	64	3	0	67
W/O Investment Tax Credit	49	5	0	54
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	60	3	0	63
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	55	5	0	60
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	⁻ 59	2	0	61

Table 31. Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
IAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	13	33	7	53
W/O Tax Indexing	2	1	83	86
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	2	2	0	4
W/O Investment Tax Credit	8	31	4	43
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	17	33	3	53
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	18	. 28	6	52
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income		28	4	- 50

Table 32. Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .50 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
TIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	84	16	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0 .	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income		0	0	0

Table 33. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 20-30	TOTALS
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	28	28
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	. 0	0	0
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	2	5	1	8
W/O Tax Indexing	3	· 8	27	38
W/ Higher Consumption	2	8	8	18
W/O Interest Write-off	3	3	1	. 7
W/O Depreciation Allowance	2	1	2	5
W/O Investment Tax Credit	. 1	1	2	4
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	3	6	1	10
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	3	5	1 1	9
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	1	2	0	3
ITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	13	8	1	22
W/O Tax Indexing	10	8	21	39
W/ Higher Consumption	12	20	7	39
W/O Interest Write-off	11	7	2	20
W/O Depreciation Allowance	. 11	4	0	15
W/O Investment Tax Credit	13	4	2	19
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	14	5	1 '	20
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	16	11	1	28
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	20	10	0	30

Table 34. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of 0.0

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
NITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	47	53	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	0	0 -	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	O	0	0	()
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income		, 0 ,	. 0	0
NITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				
Basic Comparison	9	3	0	12
W/O Tax Indexing	9	51	40	100
W/ Higher Consumption	14	21	12	47
W/O Interest Write-off	10	6	1	17
W/O Depreciation Allowance	9	4	0	13
W/O Investment Tax Credit	15	2	1	18
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	- 11	6	1	18
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	7	1	0	8
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	11	0	1	12
NITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	23	7	0	30
W/O Tax Indexing	12	50	33	100
W/ Higher Consumption	25	24	12	61
W/O Interest Write-off	17	5	3	25
W/O Depreciation Allowance	13	10	0	23
W/O Investment Tax Credit	12	. 5	0	17
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	18	4	1	23
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	11	5	2	18
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	11	2	0	13

Table 35. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER					
Basic Comparison	0	1	0	1	
W/O Tax Indexing	0	0	79	79	
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0	
W/O Interest Write-off	0	ŋ	0	0	
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	2	2	
W/O Investment Tax Credit	0	2	1	3	
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	. 0	1	· i	
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	Ö	3	2	5	
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	0	Ö	
INITIAL TENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW					
Basic Comparison	93	6	0	99	
W/O Tax Indexing	91	6	. 1	98	
W/ Higher Consumption	61	10 .	5	76	
W/O Interest Write-off	83	7	0	90	
W/O Depreciation Allowance	84	9	. 2	95	
W/O Investment Tax Credit	90	8	0	98	
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	90	8	0	98	
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	92	5	1	98	
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	86	8	2	96	
INITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER					
Basic Comparison	100	0	0	100	
W/O Tax Indexing	97	3	0	100	
W/ Higher Consumption	86	10	2	98	
W/O Interest Write-off	98	0	0	98	
W/O Depreciation Allowance	100	0	0	100	
W/O Investment Tax Credit	100	0	0	100	
W/ Write-offs Limited to IM	99	1	0	100	
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	100	0	0	100	
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	99	1	0	100	

Table 36. Results on Number of Farm Failures at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .20

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
INITIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	0	0	0	0
W/O Tax Indexing	0	71	29	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	. 0
W/O Interest Write-off	()	ð	0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	0	0	0	0
W/O Investment Tax Credit	າ	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	0	0	0	0
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	0	0	O	0
INITIAL LENURE: ZERO CASH FLOW				•
Basi: Comparison	80	3	1	84
W/O fix Indexing	83	13	4	100
W/ Higher Consumption	66 '	16	2	84
W/O Interest Write-off	84	4	0	88
W/O Depreciation Allowance	82	8	0	90
W/O Investment Tax Credit	86	2	0	88
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	80	4	1	85
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	86	3	0	89
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	80	5	0	85
INITIAL TENURE: FULL RENTER				
Basic Comparison	92	5	0	97
W/O tax Indexing	85	10	5	100
W/ Higher Consumption	85	9	Ö	84
W/O Interst Writek-off	79	9	0	88
W/O Depreciation Allowance	83	5	1	89
W/O Investment Tax Credit	86	2	Ö	88
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	87	6	0	93
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	86	8	. 0	94
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	90	5	0	95

Table 37. Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 6% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
TIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	55	42	3	100
W/O Tax Indexing	42	18	40	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	11	12	7	30
W/O Depreciation Allowance	43	40	6	89
W/O Investment Tax Credit	54	40	4	98
W/ Write-offs Limited 1M	60	34	4	98
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	62	35	2	99
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	68	27	4	99

Table 38. Results on Number of Farm Failures of Full Owner Runs at 12% Inflation with Coefficient of Variation of .75 and Equity/Asset Ratio of .40

	YEARS 1-10	YEARS 11-20	YEARS 21-30	TOTALS
TIAL TENURE: FULL OWNER				
Basic Comparison	5	5 .	4	14
W/O Tax Indexing	0	96	4	100
W/ Higher Consumption	0	0 .	0	0
W/O Interest Write-off	0	0	. 0	0
W/O Depreciation Allowance	1	7	2	10
W/O Investment Tax Credit	ĺ	9.	3	13
W/ Write-offs Limited to 1M	3	10	1	14
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Wealth	3	7	5	15
W/ Write-offs Truncated by Income	2	12	2	16

VITA Z

Stanley Ray Ralstin

Candidate for the Degree of

Master of Science

Thesis: IMPACTS OF SELECTED FEDERAL POLICIES ON GROWTH AND

SURVIVABILITY OF TYPICAL FAMILY FARMS IN A STOCHASTIC

ENVI RONMENT

Major Field: Agricultural Economics

Biographical:

Personal Data: Born in Guymon, Oklahoma, August 25, 1958, the son of Mr. and Mrs. Ray Ralstin.

Education: Graduated from Guymon High School, Guymon, Oklahoma, in May, 1976; received the Bachelor of Science in Agriculture degree from Oklahoma State University in Agricultural Economics in May, 1981; completed the requirements for the Master of Science degree from Oklahoma State University with a major in Agricultural Economics in May, 1983.

Professional Experience: Graduate Research Assistant of Oklahoma State University from 1981-1983; member of Oklahoma Agricultural Economics Association.